
TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING 
WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 8TH, 2021 – 1:30 P.M. 
East Grand Forks City Hall Training Room/Zoom 

 
PLEASE NOTE: Due to ongoing public health concerns related to COVID-19 the Grand 
Forks/East Grand Forks Metropolitan Planning Organization (GF/EGF MPO) is 
encouraging citizens to provide their comments for public hearing items via e-mail at 
info@theforksmpo.org. The comments will be sent to the Technical Advisory Committee 
members prior to the meeting and will be included in the minutes of the meeting. To ensure 
your comments are received and distributed prior to the meeting, please submit them by 
5:00 p.m. one (1) business day prior to the meeting and reference the agenda item your 
comments addresses.  
 

MEMBERS 
 
Peterson/Kadrmas _____  Mason/Hopkins_____   West _____ 
Ellis _____           Zacher/Johnson _____  Magnuson _____ 
Bail/Emery _____       Kuharenko/Williams _____        Sanders _____  
Brooks/Halford _____  Bergman _____         Christianson _____  
Riesinger _____     
         
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. CALL OF ROLL 
 
3. DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM 
 
4. MATTER OF APPROVAL OF THE AUGUST 11, 2021, MINUTES OF THE 
 TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
 
5. MATTER OF UPDATE ON FUTURE BRIDGE TRAFFIC  
  IMPACT STUDY .................................................................................... ALLIANT 
 
6. MATTER OF UPDATE ON EAST GRAND FORKS LAND USE PLAN .......... KOUBA 
 
7. MATTER OF UPDATE ON GRAND FORKS LAND USE PLAN ................... HAUGEN 
 
 
 

mailto:info@theforksmpo.org


TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
SEPTEMBER 8TH, 2021 MEETING 
PAGE 2 
 
 
8. MATTER OF POTENTIAL AMENDMENT TO METROPOLITAN 
  TRANSPORTATION PLAN (MTP) ....................................................... HAUGEN 
 
9. MATTER OF T.I.P. SOLICITATION ................................................................. HAUGEN 
 
10. OTHER BUSINESS 
     A.     2021 Annual Work Program Project Update 
           1)     Aerial Photo Update 
           2)     Pavement Management Update 
           3)     Transit Development Program Update 
           4)     NDDOT Freight And Rail Plan Update 
   
11. ADJOURNMENT  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

INDIVIDUALS REQUIRING A SPECIAL ACCOMMODATION TO ALLOW ACCESS OR PARTICIPATION AT THIS MEETING ARE ASKED TO 

NOTIFY EARL HAUGEN, TITLE VI COORDINATOR, AT (701) 746-2660 OF HIS/HER NEEDS FIVE (5) DAYS PRIOR TO THE MEETING.  

IN ADDITION,  MATERIALS FOR THIS MEETING CAN BE PROVIDED IN ALTERNATIVE FORMATS:  LARGE PRINT, BRAILLE, CASSETTE 

TAPE, OR ON COMPUTER DISK FOR PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES OR WITH LIMITED ENGLISH PROFICIENCY (LEP) BY CONTACTING 

THE TITLE VI COORDINATOR AT (701) 746-2660  



 
PROCEEDINGS OF THE 

TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
Wednesday, August 11th, 2021 

 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
Earl Haugen, Chairman, called the August 11th, 2021, meeting of the MPO Technical Advisory 
Committee to order at 2:03 p.m. (Technical problems caused delay of start of the meeting) 
 
CALL OF ROLL 
 
On a Call of Roll the following members were present:  Wayne Zacher, NDDOT-Local 
Government; Steve Emery, East Grand Forks Engineering; Nancy Ellis, East Grand Forks 
Planning; Jane Williams, Grand Forks Engineering; and Dale Bergman, Cities Area Transit.  The 
following members were present via Zoom:  Ryan Brooks, Grand Forks Planning; Jon Mason, 
MnDOT-District 2; and Jason Peterson, NDDOT-Grand Forks. 
 
Absent:  Brad Bail, Stephanie Halford, Jesse Kadrmas, David Kuharenko, Rich Sanders, Ryan 
Riesinger, Michael Johnson, Nick West, Lane Magnuson, Lars Christianson, and Patrick 
Hopkins. 
 
Guest(s) present:  Kristen Sperry, FHWA-North Dakota; Anna Pierce, MnDOT-Central Office; 
Tim Burkhardt, Alliant Engineering; and Mike Kondziolka, Alliant Engineering; and Troy 
Schroeder, NWRDC. 
 
Staff:  Earl Haugen, GF/EGF MPO Executive Director; Teri Kouba, GF/EGF MPO Senior 
Planner; and Peggy McNelis, GF/EGF MPO Office Manager. 
 
DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM 
 
Haugen declared a quorum was present. 
 
MATTER OF APPROVAL OF THE JULY 14TH  MINUTES OF THE TECHNICAL 
ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
 
MOVED BY BROOKS, SECONDED BY BERGMAN, TO APPROVE THE JULY 14TH, 2021 
MINUTES OF THE TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE, AS SUBMITTED. 
  
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
 
 
 

1 



PROCEEDINGS OF THE 
TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
Wednesday, August 11th, 2021 
 

2 
 

MATTER OF UPDATE ON FUTURE BRIDGE TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY 
 
Haugen reported that included in the packet was a copy of today’s presentation, the new Tech 
Memo on the build options, and the Draft Purpose and Need memo.  He then turned the screen 
over to Alliant for a brief update. 
 
Burkhardt stated that this is update number six and the main topic will be a recap on the public 
open house that is still underway online; where we are with the documentation of Project 
Purpose and Need and then the real meat is, as Mr. Haugen mentioned, the traffic results for the 
build alternatives.   
 
Burkhardt said that you are probably generally familiar with what they are up to, which is really 
to get engagement, sort of number one, a lot of information out in terms of this is why we are 
doing the study, and then sort of the base information that we call “no build”; and next time 
around will be input on the options and the comparison. 
 
Burkhardt stated that where we are, or a recap, they did do some pretty decent advertising, and 
the core of the open house is the online site that is on the platform they call “Social Pinpoint”, 
which hopefully you have visited.  He said they also did a live online presentation on July 27th, 
and people were able to provide input via chat.  He added that they did record that and it is 
available on the website. 
 
Burkhardt commented that they do have some statistics on the open house participation, which 
he would like to share.  He said that they are getting good online participation, but low 
participation in terms of that live online meeting, 13 participants, so that was not successful so 
would be interested in feedback on why and/or how we can do that better, there are probably lots 
of reason, including the usual ones. 
 
Burkhardt stated that in terms of the online visits you can see the numbers here; total site visits, 
and then the unique users, which means people that are here for the first time as opposed to 
people coming back multiple times, so brand new users since they put up the public open house 
information, 1300 visits, that is all good; they do have a survey in there and a map that you can 
comment on specific to issues around the schools, but there are pretty low numbers on those as 
well, but he would say that the comments they are getting there are definitely useful and good. 
 
Burkhardt commented that just to summarize what they are hearing at the live event; a very small 
number of people, and as we know, typically people that have more to say are going to show up 
and maybe have more concerns, so the number one discussion of question and comment type 
was about traffic on 32nd Avenue and traffic around the schools, in terms about increased traffic. 
 
Burkhardt stated that the online comments, we do get some nice output so he would like to 
present this graph, but keep in mind this is a small sample size so don’t take it to the bank.  He 
said that we see, not surprisingly, if you just look at where the comment activity is on the topics, 
there are more comments about concerns like I’m worried about as opposed to hey this is great.  
He stated that they asked people on these topics; traffic volumes, safety, etc., and also other, 



PROCEEDINGS OF THE 
TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
Wednesday, August 11th, 2021 
 

3 
 

which again was sort of back to neighborhood impacts, and that wasn’t surprising, but certainly 
as we go forward there will be a challenge to make sure we are communicating well, responding 
to questions and to get people to see the facts as we see them as opposed to only their concern, 
both of which are valid. 
 
Burkhardt stated that they asked people what they thought about their Purpose and Need 
Statement, and again not a lot of responses, but more in the strongly agree comment then 
elsewhere, which is good, and that is essentially more for information about how people are 
reacting to the messaging in his opinion, purpose and need is essentially a factual document.  He 
said that they did ask people to provide comments, and so he thinks again, not surprising, but for 
him, as Project Manager, and thinking about our communications and messaging, sort of one 
side of the river versus the other, or one neighborhood versus the other, not surprising but 
something that he would like to try to focus more on the big picture on what the need is and how 
we can best accommodate it so that will be what we focus on as we go forward.   
 
Burkhardt referred to a graphic of the Comment Map, specifically focused on school impacts, 
understanding that is sort of an overlap with the bridge study, and it can be useful for the study, 
and useful otherwise at individual school sites.  He said that, again, there aren’t a lot of 
comments here, but it is a useful tool; probably the most comments, shown in purple, were again 
about 32nd Avenue and again concerns about traffic increases.  He said that he is glad to see 
some comments on the Elks Drive location, just in terms of people thinking about how that 
location works, and again if you go on the website, you can see these comments, and they will 
continue taking comments through August 15th.     
 
Williams stated that she has one comment, it is actually further on in the study but you kind of 
touched on it so it might be wise to bring it up here.  She said that on the last page of the memo, 
Page 4, it is about the socio and economic factors, and it has neighborhood quality of life, but 
then the summary says that it would support; now are you talking about the overall community is 
going to be okay, it is kind of confusing from the standpoint that if  you are going to put more 
traffic into a neighborhood, she doesn’t think that is improving their quality of life, but then if 
you are taking something away from another and balancing it out then that could be an 
improvement, so she thinks it is kind of a misnomer to call it “neighborhood quality”, because 
the groups there look at themselves as entirely different entities, it may be more appropriate to 
call it “community”.  Burkhardt responded that he thinks that is an excellent comment as that 
was the intent, they are looking at tradeoffs and less traffic at one place and more somewhere 
else, but is it more balanced as an example.  Williams agreed, adding that those are two different 
neighborhoods.  Burkhardt responded that he was thinking in terms of, my neighborhood quality 
of life, and that feeds into one versus the other which he doesn’t want to do, so he is very happy 
to make that change in that document. 
 
Burkhardt referred to the Draft Purpose and Need slide and commented that there are a lot of 
words on here, so the comment period is open, as he said, through August 15th.  He stated that 
this is a living document that evolves as understanding evolves through the comment period. 
 



PROCEEDINGS OF THE 
TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
Wednesday, August 11th, 2021 
 

4 
 

Burkhardt stated that the next part of the slide is about something you are all familiar with; the 
study is identified as a Planning and Environmental Linkage (PEL) Study; the intent of which is 
to, as a project for Mr. Emery in the Environmental phase to be able to use the work we are 
doing now in the environmental document.  He said that there are a lot of ins and outs to that, 
and technicalities, depending on lead agencies; Minnesota or North Dakota, complying with the 
federal process.  He explained the summary that we have is for an informal PEL process, North 
Dakota does not have a formal PEL process and North Dakota is the lead agency when it comes 
to that issue; Minnesota does have a formal PEL process which goes well beyond the steps we 
are taking in this study so they have had conversations just to clarify what we are doing and how 
the study relates to those two states and their processes, and this has come up, in part related to 
the last bullet, which is where we are asking, as part of a formal PEL or NEPA process, there is 
an opportunity to ask and get input from all the ranges of environmental agencies and we are 
doing that and for those of you that have been advising on that he is about to send out that 
request, but then the question is how does that relate, what is the process that is feeding back 
into.   
 
Williams pointed out that it says that NDDOT is the Lead Agency; who is the main contact 
person, is it the Lead Agency or is it going to be the Lead Agency.  Zacher responded that 
NDDOT is the Lead Agency and since he is the MPO Coordinator, he would be the main contact 
person.  He explained that it is a study, so it is still going through the MPO, but NDDOT is the 
Lead Agency for the Bi-State MPO.  Williams asked if there might be somewhere in the 
document that we can summarize what the differences are between the two agencies so that the 
public and everyone will know what they are that we could cut and paste in the document, even 
if it is a chart that says yes and no and what the different things are that are covered.  Haugen 
responded that there isn’t anything that exists that compares North Dakota to Minnesota so that 
would have to be created.  Williams asked what more do we need to do to make this okay for 
both agencies.  Haugen responded that the short answer is that essentially North Dakota has to 
approve a formal PEL process, and we have discussed this internally with NDDOT, and we are 
where we are.  Burkhardt added that they are doing as much as they possibly can to try to make 
this study compliant and therefore valuable and to not have to repeat the work if we were to go 
into the environmental process, but because it is not an official PEL process there is no sign-off 
that guarantees that and he thinks, unfortunately, that is the best we can do and this is not the 
only study or agency, it is an age old process with NEPA and the PEL process tries to improve 
on that and in the formal process it does but in the informal process it is better but there is still 
some risk of having to go back on some things in the NEPA process.   
 
Mason said he had a question about the letters.  He said that he knows MnDOT provided some 
revised sample language, and he is just curious if the letters being sent out will be including that 
language or what is the final plan for those.  Burkhardt responded that they will, and added that 
Mr. Mason might have also answered his question which was does he bother you all who were in 
that loop with another review; he has a draft ready to go out so why doesn’t he send that back out 
to the group to look at it again and make sure you are okay with how they addressed that. 
 
Burkhardt commented that one thing he wanted to say as he reviews this and thinks back to that 
public involvement is, actually two things he wants to say; 1) as you may have noticed, while we 



PROCEEDINGS OF THE 
TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
Wednesday, August 11th, 2021 
 

5 
 

have this information on how the different alternatives perform, what we don’t have yet and 
haven’t done yet is a really nice concise comparison or evaluation that summarizes no build 
versus Elks versus 32nd in terms of performance and some of the other criteria, so that is coming 
next so if you are wondering how does this compare, that is coming and he just wanted to share 
that; and 2) between the information that we have on the intersection level of service 
performance and the graphics is ultimately how we judge the performance from that engineering 
traffic professional perspective.  He added that they also have a bunch of graphics that show the 
forecast change in traffic volumes.  He said that they are very interesting, and the public will 
either like or dislike them depending on the answer they are interested in, but they are 
interesting.  He stated that he does want to work on them a bit when we get to our public input 
phase because as you see 3,000 vehicles more or 1,500 less it is hard for people to know what 
that means and they assume that 3,000 is very bad and results in something negative, and it 
might for them personally, but again if you look at performance from a level of service 
perspective and how we intend for that street to operate those are different so he just wanted to 
preempt that as you look at those graphics, that is certainly something that comes up; which is 
more important and what does that mean so that is what they will be interpreting that when we 
do the comparison that is coming up.  Williams asked if the actual numbers can be put in when 
the final report is done rather than over 3,000 or under 3,000, are we talking 10,000 or are we 
talking 3,001 type thing.  Burkhardt responded that he thinks that that would be a good addition.  
He added that Mr. Kondziolka and himself had talked about that even the weighting of the lines, 
while kind of useful it is also a little bit, like in the case of that 3,001, it could exaggerate so they 
had a version of these with colors and not weights, and he thinks they will do a different version 
of these for the public, and yes, the numbers is another good thing.   
 
Kondziolka stated that he is going to discuss the Future Build Alternative Traffic Operations 
Analysis.  He added that this analysis is for the Elks Drive and 32nd Avenue bridge options, these 
are looking at the years 2030 and 2045, as the no build analysis also did.  He said that they are 
looking at both segment and intersection performance in terms of traffic mobility, and then they 
also conducted warrants and analysis for traffic signal warrants and for all way stop control 
warrants with this analysis and then after concluding that looked at mitigation options for the 
different scenarios at locations that were expected to operate unacceptably.   
 
Kondziolka said that, as Mr. Burkhardt just stated we are going to go through the volume 
changes, and we have an exhibit showing the difference for each of the Elks Drive and 32nd 
Avenue bridge options.  He noted that these show the difference between the no build and the 
bridge alternative volumes for the same year, so this is 2030 no build versus the Elks Drive 2030 
and then for the 2045 no build versus the 2045 bridge alternative. 
 
Kondziolka stated that these graphics are really just showing what our anticipated differences in 
traffic volumes along this network are with each of the alternatives as compared to the no build 
option.  He said that as you can see, and as expected traffic on the northern portion of the study 
area is anticipated to be reduced while we are increasing traffic around the bridge on the southern 
portion of the area, and so we can see some more significant reductions along DeMers and 4th 
and on Washington Street and then increases are taking place on the southern section so 32nd and 
24th and then across the bridge.   



PROCEEDINGS OF THE 
TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
Wednesday, August 11th, 2021 
 

6 
 

Kondziolka commented that these somewhat speak for themselves, so he won’t go into too much 
detail on them but the big takeaway for all of them is kind of more so after we look at the 
difference between the Elks Bridge option and the 32nd Avenue Bridge option.  He pointed out 
that the Elks Bridge option has a little bit more of a balance between 24th and 32nd and between 
Greenway and 190th, so given the location of the bridge being slightly further north than the 32nd 
Avenue Bridge there is a little bit more of a balance in terms of traffic volume draw whereas the 
32nd Avenue Bridge option does concentrate more on the traffic that is shifted off the northern 
roadways to the more southern roadways so to 32nd and to 190th as compared to the Elks Drive 
Bridge option.  He said that if you go to 2045 you will see a similar pattern. 
 
Williams stated that she has one comment, and you kind of touched on it; but in your slide it says 
what the slides actually are, they are forecasted volumes and then the differences between them, 
and she but she doesn’t think that really comes across on these slides; it says forecast volumes 
changes between no build and build for 2030 or 2045, depending upon, could you actually make 
the title of the slides say that.  She explained that she asked somebody about this, and they said 
that they couldn’t figure out what this was, just based on that title.  Kondziolka responded that he 
can, just to further clarify that it is a comparison of forecasted volumes.  Williams said that 
would clarify that you are comparing the no build and its volume changes and such. 
 
Kondziolka referred to the 2030 Elks Drive Bridge option slide and stated that this is a similar 
presentation to the no build synopsis we went through previously.  He said that in terms of, and 
he guesses these graphics more so, the graphics on the left are kind of summarizing everything 
we have found for the mobility and congestion analysis, but for the Elks Drive Bridge option we 
have in 2030 none of the roadway segments, which would be colored green to red are operating 
at an unacceptable level so the orange or red would be considered unacceptable, however there 
are multiple intersections that are expected to either fail at a Level of Service F or approach 
capacity so the orange or yellow intersections are approaching capacity and those that are red are 
expected to exceed capacity.  He added that a big disclaimer for this analysis is that this is all 
done assuming just traffic growth but no changes to the traffic control, these are the existing 
conditions in terms of analyzing future volume with turn lanes and traffic control that is currently 
out there plus any programmed improvements, so similar to the no build scenario.   
 
Kondziolka stated that, just a note on the Rhinehart and Bygland intersection they evaluated that 
as they did in the no build, with both with the existing traffic control and with the proposed 
round-about control.  He said that it is shown with the hatch marks there because we have two 
different sets of results that are expected to operate acceptably with the round-about but would 
have issues without it. 
 
Kondziolka said that looking at the 2045 Elks Drive Bridge option you will see similar results, 
you might have noticed the intersection at Bygland and Greenway had a star previously, but it 
went away here and that is because it was analyzed with the programmed traffic signal that is 
expected by the Year 2045.  He stated that is the biggest change here; we see a little bit of yellow 
on Washington Street, so there are slightly degraded operations but still operating within what is 
considered acceptable, and then we have kind of a concentration of intersections that are 



PROCEEDINGS OF THE 
TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
Wednesday, August 11th, 2021 
 

7 
 

operating above capacity or would be expected to operate above capacity near Elks Drive at 
Belmont and then 32nd at Cherry and Belmont as well.   
 
Kondziolka said that moving on to the 32nd Avenue option, going through it similarly, again we 
don’t have any roadway segments that are expected to exceed capacity of function, no orange or 
red for the roadway segments, however we do have a few intersections that are expected to 
exceed capacity; again at Cherry and 32nd, Belmont and 32nd, Greenway and Bygland, and at 4th 
and Belmont and Bygland and Rhinehart. 
 
Kondziolka commented that in 2045 we see similar conditions; the same condition for 
Greenway, the traffic control was changed to a signal, so the traffic control issue goes away.  He 
said that there is an additional intersection at Washington and 32nd that will be expected to reach 
Level of Service E and D at peak hours.   
 
Williams stated that she thinks that maybe by actually putting the numbers on the streets, the 
volume numbers, it will make it clearer but it is showing that Belmont and 4th isn’t improving 
above a Level of Service E with the new bridges, and she is sure that is based on some of the 
existing numbers and it just doesn’t improve it enough, but she is wondering if even with the 
new bridge it will still be at that level because she thinks the neighborhood in that area is 
expecting to almost have all the traffic go away so she doesn’t want them to get their hopes up 
that all their problems will be solved, so maybe just an explanation can be put in when you do 
the analysis you said you will be doing so they know that even though the traffic will be reduced 
it will still not bring it to an acceptable level of service.  Kondziolka responded that that is 
accurate and this again is the unmitigated scenario, so without any changes, this is an all-way 
stop intersection, so without any changes, looking out to 2045, even with a new bridge, the 
traffic growth that is anticipated it would still result in failing operations at that intersection, so 
that would be a location where we would want to recommend some kind of intersection 
improvement no matter what the scenario is, that would be between the no build, the Elks Drive 
Bridge or the 32nd Avenue Bridge that intersection would require some type of improvement by 
2045. Williams said that that would probably answer the questions the neighborhood might have.  
Burkhardt added that the point is that the all-way stop control can only do so much, so it is partly 
what you would like it to be, or what makes sense from an engineering standpoint, what that four 
way can actually do. 
 
Kondziolka said that the next piece of this analysis was to look at, for each of the intersections 
that had unacceptable operations, or a Level of Service E or F, the did a warrants analysis, so this 
is looking at either warrants for installing a traffic signal or there are also warrants for installing 
an all-way intersection control if you are looking to move from a two-way stop or side street stop 
and going to an all-way stop control.  There aren’t specific warrants for a round-about because 
round-abouts can be considered anywhere regardless of volume conditions, round-abouts are 
considered as a potential mitigation option and there are not specific warrants.  He said that in 
looking through this, really the primary information here is not whether warrants were met, so 
we are mostly summarizing here for the intersections that reach unacceptable levels by 2045 for 
each of the scenarios, what are the potential options that we should consider for mitigation, and 
for most of these we will see that both a signal or all-way stop control would be able to consider 



PROCEEDINGS OF THE 
TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
Wednesday, August 11th, 2021 
 

8 
 

based on traffic warrants; but at a couple of these intersections there were no warrants met, 
specifically the 4th and Belmont, as we were discussing under the Elks Bridge and 32nd Avenue 
Bridge alternatives, and that really is probably an important point relative to the previous 
comment, the volumes do change there, the volumes are reduced at that intersection however it is 
still expected to operate poorly and this kind of exemplifies that there are volume changes with 
those bridge scenarios but not enough to correct operations without additional mitigation. 
 
Williams commented that, just a little information, you probably didn’t gather these counts 
because of various different things that we have not been able to get really good counts, but 
Belmont and 4th does warrant a traffic signal if you use the school crossing, so it does meet a 
warrant.  She added that she is sure they will look at that with the pedestrian thing and all that, 
but she can verify that it does meet that warrant.  Kondziolka responded that that is probably an 
important point of verification, there are nine warrants that can be considered and for the 
purposes of this analysis some of them are more unique to particular applications, the volume 
based warrants are what was analyzed for this study here so this is looking at just turning 
movement volumes, that is warrants 1, 2, and 3, there is a slow base warrant and that may be met 
here as well.  Williams asked if that also applies to Cherry and 32nd.  Kondziolka responded it 
does. 
 
Kondziolka stated that the Mitigation Analysis Methodology is just kind of an overview of what 
the process was to establish a hierarchy or process of looking at the mitigation in order to look at 
these consistently and in order to select an option consistently.  He said that the outline of this 
process for identifying mitigation was to first look at just what the addition of turn lanes could do 
without a change in traffic control, so just adding turn lanes to improve conditions.  He stated 
that the next would be if we are starting from a side street stop condition to convert to an all way 
stop control if all of the acceptable warrants are met and then to add just the minimum turn lane 
additions that would be required to reach acceptable operations.  He said that if that wasn’t 
enough to reach acceptable operations the next would be to convert to signalized control with 
minimum turn lane additions, and then finally converting to a single lane roundabout was the last 
step in the process, and these are really looking at what is the minimum amount of mitigation 
required in order to reach acceptable operations and to most cost effectively mitigate the 
intersection.  He added that that is the general methodology, there were some additional 
considerations for locations near schools on 4th and Belmont and 32nd and Cherry where we 
know the pedestrian crossings are a priority and for crash issue intersections. 
 
Kondziolka referred to the Mitigation Summary slide and commented that there is a lot going on 
so he will just kind of walk us through what they are showing in the table.  He said that for each 
of the scenarios they are showing what, at each intersection that had unacceptable operations into 
the future, type of level of service and which warrants were met for that intersection.  He added 
that there are a couple of columns for school adjacent and then for identified crash issues, which 
is what he was just discussing; those are locations where we took in additional considerations 
outside of the hierarchy in that step wise process where we are evaluating potential mitigation 
functions.   
 



PROCEEDINGS OF THE 
TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
Wednesday, August 11th, 2021 
 

9 
 

Kondziolka stated that the next column of acceptable mitigation control options, this is of those 
options that were warranted, which of them resolved the intersection to an acceptable operation, 
so only those that were able to be effective enough to reduce local service below a level E are 
shown in that column.  He said that the last three columns; that last section, the assumed 
mitigated control option is the option that first satisfied the criteria in the hierarchy we discussed, 
so this would be the option that would effectively mitigate and would be the first to achieve 
acceptable operations on the list of four steps. 
 
Williams commented that, in our transportation plan we have Level of Service C as the Level of 
Service we want to achieve.  Haugen responded that that isn’t correct.  Williams asked if we are 
going for a Level of Service D in this study.  Haugen responded that our transportation plan now 
has a Level of Service D as the level we want to achieve. 
 
Burkhardt stated that that is it in terms in their presentation today, but again, next steps, in terms 
of their work will be that comparative evaluation really summarizing, there isn’t a lot of new 
technical information on the traffic side but summarizing that so we can see it as a side by side 
comparison and then bringing in some of the other factors in terms of environmental issues.  He 
added that they will also be creating some graphics illustrating these alternatives, in particular 
the crossing itself on the intersections, they will do those in a concept drawing and then a map 
that also summarizes the mitigation that would be needed that would go along with each of those 
options including the no build to make them whole to address any intersection or operation 
issues. 
 
Williams said that she thinks we are all aware of this, but it is very confusing for some people; 
when we are talking about traffic and vehicles, we are only doing this for passenger type 
vehicles, right, this is not for trucks, or is it going to be for trucks.  Haugen responded that for the 
bridge itself the concept has always been described as mimicking or mirroring the Point Bridge.  
Williams said that she actually had somebody ask her that question and they were getting all 
upset that there were going to be trucks running through there, so if we just iterate this at the 
beginning, that we are talking about passenger vehicles, she thinks that would cut out a lot of 
comments.  Burkhardt suggested maybe calling it a local bridge with passenger vehicle traffic.  
Williams added that you might have to carry that over from one memo to the next, and repeat it, 
but she thinks it will sooth some ruffled feathers.  Burkhardt agreed that we should repeat that 
everywhere.  He added that he is hopeful that their illustrations of the bridge will help people see 
that it is like the Point Bridge and not like an interstate or multi-lane bridge. 
 
Burkhardt asked if there was anything else that Mr. Haugen would like to add.  Haugen 
commented that he thinks we need to establish some deadline for Technical Advisory Committee 
on Tech Memo 3C, it is in draft form, and we have had some comments today, and he would ask 
that any other comments you may have on it be submitted to staff by Friday, August 20th.  He 
added that the Open House Comment period is open until August 15th, so at our next Technical 
Advisory Committee meeting we should have more or less a cleaned-up Tech Memo 3C and 
then the results of our initial public engagement process to report.  He said that he isn’t sure if  
Alliant has another work item to present as a draft to us then as well.  Burkhardt responded that 
he can’t quite answer that but he thinks we are at the point where, given where we are at the end 



PROCEEDINGS OF THE 
TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
Wednesday, August 11th, 2021 
 

10 
 

of year, and our next public engagement he want to move us on relatively quickly, at least from a 
technical standpoint now that we have the traffic information established to do the concept 
drawings and the evaluation, whether that will be ready in advance of next months meeting, 
probably not, but he will lay out the schedule to get to that detail.  He added that we also have 
the next Ad Hoc meeting in there as well. 
 
Information only.  
 
MATTER OF FINAL FY2022-2025 T.I.P. 
 
Haugen commented that we did advertise a public hearing for this time and date and we allowed 
people to provide written comments prior to it, there is no one in the audience today and we did 
not receive any oral or written comments prior to the deadline. 
 
Haugen stated that included in your report is the full draft that was out for public comment.  He 
said that since then we did have some comments from MnDOT and then also a couple things on 
the North Dakota side that we will cover in our discussion.   
 
Haugen said that if you noticed, the T.I.P. looks considerably different than in the past, MnDOT 
and North Dakota provided a template for us to use to help improve the document, and we did 
the best we could to implement it.  He added, though, that there are still a lot of comments on 
how we can improve it, there is, though, one specific comment as it relates to the actual T.I.P. 
tables themselves that MnDOT expressed we needed to address; a lot of them centered on transit 
on the Minnesota side.  He said that he knows that Ms. Ellis and MnDOT were trying to have a 
conversation on this.  Ellis responded that she hasn’t heard anything from MnDOT yet. 
 
Haugen stated that the difference that is going on, as you can see, is through the T.I.P. process 
there are several iterations of cost estimates that take place, and, he doesn’t remember the exact 
date, but sometime in July he believes, the two transit operators finalized their cost allocation 
model that showed how they were splitting out costs between fixed route and demand response, 
that changed the numbers one more time, and so what was shown in the public document for 
review were the 2020 cost estimates from the Cities Area Transit showing primarily increased 
costs in demand response; if you would have seen these numbers last year you would have seen 
less dollars going into demand response than you would have fixed route, and then the out years 
are then taking this 2020 as a base and year of expenditure and inflating them out to 2025.  He 
said that MnDOT is asking us to consider not using this cost allocation model, but he believes a 
reflection is more accurate using the current T.I.P. dollars, because if you look in 2023 and you 
see the numbers they have listed underneath, those are the numbers that are in the current T.I.P. 
document versus the numbers that we were deriving using the latest cost estimate.  He added that 
he isn’t sure there is an opportunity between now and the MPO Executive Policy Board meeting 
next Wednesday to iron out these differences. 
 
Haugen commented that there were a couple of other projects; the first one on the Minnesota side 
is a project that they term ELLA, a MnDOT acronym for Early Let Late Encumbrance, so the 
project is actually taking place right now, physically out there you will see it in 2021, but the 



PROCEEDINGS OF THE 
TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
Wednesday, August 11th, 2021 
 

11 
 

financing year is 2022; the numbers that we show are the numbers that were in the current T.I.P. 
document and we didn’t convert them to the actual let amount and MnDOT has informed us 
what those amounts are. 
 
Haugen stated that the next project is the Roundabout, and our current T.I.P. document, and the 
past three T.I.P. documents have shown this cost estimate which includes things other than 
construction and he believes MnDOT is asking us to just use construction costs. 
 
Haugen said that those were the principal comments that MnDOT wants us to address in this 
document, they have a lot of other editorial improvements and suggestions that are under 
consideration as well. 
 
Haugen stated that on the North Dakota side; you noticed in the Draft T.I.P. that was out, and last 
year we started to have grouped project listings for the right-of-way, preliminary engineering, 
utilities, in the draft that was out for public comment; those cost estimates are still blank 
although he believes North Dakota has the numbers calculated now, and will be sharing them 
with us soon but they were not available in time to meet the publication.   
 
Haugen referred to a table and commented that this is the Fiscal Year 2022, and these are the 
four grouped project listing that you can see we have “x’s” in the columns for now so we will 
have to amend the T.I.P. once those numbers do come in.  He added that they are aware that 
there is a bit of a lag from when we adopt the T.I.P. this month and when we can first offer 
amendments to both States, and the Feds have to get funds transferred from this year’s 
T.I.P./S.T.I.P. into next year’s T.I.P./S.T.I.P. before they want to start adding in amendments, so 
it will be a couple of months, so shooting for November.   
 
Haugen commented that the NDDOT also recently identified a project that wasn’t previously 
known, it has to do with revamping the lights on the Interstate System and there is one system at 
the 32nd Avenue Interchange that is included in their Statewide, so we have that as a new listing 
and it will require more public involvement, so the will add that in as well in November, it is a 
total of $10,000 with a 90/10 assumed split. 
 
Haugen stated that the last project that North Dakota commented on is a high tension median 
cable guardrail on I-29, it is a total dollar amount, it isn’t broken down into just our MPA area 
that he is aware of, but the previous cost estimate was $4.1 million and that is now at about $4.4 
million.  Zacher commented that he didn’t calculate in the MPA area he just sent the overall 
project so we have to figure out and come up with a ratio what is in the MPA.  He said he wanted 
to make Mr. Haugen aware of the project because it was listed from Fargo to Grand Forks at one 
time but they actually split it out into a number of projects.  Haugen stated that the cost increase 
doesn’t reach our threshold of requiring additional public comment so we can take action without 
needing additional public comment. 
 
Haugen said that he isn’t aware of any other comments particular to the T.I.P. listings themselves 
and he would like to thank everyone for getting their projects to the MPO.  He stated that we do 
have this item before us of what, as a staff and Technical Advisory Committee would we 



PROCEEDINGS OF THE 
TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
Wednesday, August 11th, 2021 
 

12 
 

recommend for the Minnesota T.I.P. tables regarding transit.  Mason said he has a question on 
this; you mentioned that you have this question out here and you question that there is enough 
time to have it all ironed out before the Board meets, and he thinks you know a little bit about 
how MnDOT adopts its transit, it is more or less kind of the MnDOT face for the programming 
working with the transit operator and the MPO, so he is curious what you might need from him 
or maybe Anna Pierce or maybe specifically our Transit Office to resolve any questions lingering 
concerns.  Haugen responded that his first reaction would be to ask why wouldn’t we use the cost 
estimates that the two transit operators will be using for their cost, their contractual obligation, 
one towards the other and then inflate that for year of expenditure, and if Office of Transit is not 
willing to identify at this time any additional State Award that we would use the current State 
Awards that is in our current T.I.P. for those out years and just increase the local match and 
know that this is an annual update that at least the 2022 is reflecting what is identified as the best 
cost estimate between the two entities.  He added that he isn’t sure what else we can do on that 
end.  Mason responded that it is sort of out of his wheelhouse with the demand response model 
and year of expenditure things that you guys have in to play; he would like to see this resolved, 
do we need to have another meeting with MnDOT’s Office of Transit, the MPO, and Ms. Ellis.  
Haugen responded that, again, that has been asked for.  Ellis commented that she did visit with 
Vonnie, her project manager, and based on the 2022 she was told that even though we are using 
our NTD cost per passenger for Dial-A-Ride, that was a five year estimate, and then based on 
our predicted ridership, at this point in time their applications were only accepting what our cost 
was, what was in the T.I.P. last year at a 2% increase, so that was what she was told as far as 
2022, so she can’t figure out why 2023 was less, or at a smaller amount, and that was what her 
questions are.  She added that it looks like a 2% increase after that, but 2023 went down from 
2022, which was less than what they asked for in their application to begin with, and then it 
shows no local match and so she is trying to flesh out where they got their numbers and why they 
are the way they are because when we do our reporting we have to report actuals so she doesn’t 
understand why if we have to report actuals they aren’t using actuals for our application.  She 
added that she hasn’t had a chance to catch up with Vonnie to discuss this yet. 
 
Haugen referred to a slide and commented that he has blown it up to illustrate the difference 
between what the public comment T.I.P. was at and what MnDOT is requesting us to consider.  
He pointed out that for the fixed route there is just a difference of a decimal point or rounding 
factor, for the total cost there is no change in the federal or the other for fixed route; where it 
comes into play is on the demand response and you can see that it is a roughly $25,000 
difference, and then there is no number that tells is how, backing up here, on the Minnesota side 
federal funds aren’t used on the demand response side, and so it is either funded using a split of 
state funds and local dollars and MnDOT is identifying one number and so it would be nice that 
if we are going to agree with the $117,045 that we also agree to the $108,000 and the $10,000.  
Pierce stated that she can explain the one number; they only have one number in their A.T.I.P., 
and it is just listed as “other” and in your document you seem to break it out there with the local 
split and they don’t have that in their document so she doesn’t know what that would be and that 
is why she leaves it up to you to fill it out so whenever in any of these columns it says other and 
local and they are crossed out and there is one number underneath it is the total between those 
two so it is however your split is done.  Haugen explained that to give a history of why this 
“other” is not under the State is because the District, awhile ago, wanted the State funds to only 



PROCEEDINGS OF THE 
TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
Wednesday, August 11th, 2021 
 

13 
 

reflect highway dollars and any other State funds were to be reflected under “other”, and then 
you see the note under remarks that it is transit.   
 
Haugen pointed out that you will notice that the big difference comes in at about $100,000 on the 
fixed route.  He stated that this number is reflecting the new cost allocation in 2022 at $550,000; 
in 2023 they are asking us to use a $620,000 estimate, which is what the current T.I.P. has for 
2023, but we are trying to use a new year of expenditure estimate based on the 2022 project cost.  
He stated that the demand response gets even less than it is in 2022.  Ellis said that the question 
is that it gets a little confusing for her as to what she should be applying for, should she be 
applying for the numbers that you are putting in the T.I.P., or should she be applying for the 
numbers that they are actually getting in their cost allocation models because she is kind of at a 
loss.  She added that there are ways that they can report differently to get their numbers closer to 
the demand response service in the T.I.P. and the fixed route, because right now she is splitting 
her salary between the two and she is splitting training and other items between the two so if 
their fixed is going to go up quite a bit more than that percentage, based on what their cost 
allocation model is, is this something that you want her to charge admin all to one and not the 
other, so there are just a lot of things that she doesn’t know until she sees the numbers and then 
she kind of doesn’t know where the numbers are coming from, not that she isn’t okay with it, she 
is never going to say no to the numbers she is receiving because she doesn’t want to say no to 
funding, she just doesn’t know what she is supposed to do with the changes.  Pierce responded 
that she apologizes, she doesn’t know specifics on what you should be reporting or how you 
should be breaking out that funding that is a Vonnie and Office of Transit specific question and 
coordination; just when she spoke to Vonnie about the discrepancies between the T.I.P. and the 
Final A.T.I.P. numbers she had just said that even though you had applied for $147,000, here, for 
the demand response you are only going to get $115,000 so wouldn’t it be better to show the 
lower number of whatever the lower number is and she said that she wasn’t totally sure and then 
Vonnie said to put it in that way, so she said she would bring the issue up, but she thinks we can 
have a conversation in the next couple of days and she would hope we can get this ironed out so 
she would suggest Earl, Nancy, Vonnie and Jon and herself just sit down so we are all on the 
same page.  Ellis responded that she understands how she got it, it is actually $117,000, she 
understands how she got that she took the last T.I.P. amount and then took it times a 2% 
inflation, which is what they said they were looking at on the application, she still applied for 
what she think she needs, that is what you should always be applying for rather than just taking 
your last number and taking it times 2% because you really don’t have a way to justify getting 
that number compared to what your actual statements are, that being said she gets where the 
number is but then she doesn’t understand why then in 2023 it actually goes down $2,000.00, 
and how you’re getting that number, but then the fixed route is going up quite a bit, so those are 
where her questions are, it’s not so much, she gets this is what we’re giving you based on this 
answer for next year, its kind of the out years and how you’re getting those numbers and how 
we’re going to move from here, so she kinds of knows if we should be adding money to the local 
part of it or what we should be doing, that is where her confusion is.  Pierce stated that she 
completely understands your confusion, because she honestly doesn’t know so she will have to 
follow up with Vonnie on the specifics here.  Ellis said that she is out next week, unfortunately, 
so if we are going to tackle this it would have to be by the end of this week or we may just have 
to have the Board approve it and then knowing that 2022 is what they are going to give me a 



PROCEEDINGS OF THE 
TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
Wednesday, August 11th, 2021 
 

14 
 

contract for and look to change the out years after that November time period because she 
doesn’t know if we are necessarily going to get an answer or change before next Wednesday.  
Pierce responded that she will send an e-mail out to see what peoples availability is for tomorrow 
and Friday.   
 
Haugen commented that a recommended motion would be to approve the Draft T.I.P. as 
submitted with the North Dakota side cost for the tension guardrail increase from 4.1 to 4., to  
identify that some amendments are necessary for the group projects once the cost estimates are 
provided, and then also for the timeframe for the light project on 32nd Avenue Interchange to be 
amended; and on the Minnesota side to accept the ELLA actual let amounts, identify only the 
costs only for the roundabout, and to ask MnDOT, the Transit Operator, and MPO to work out 
the transit issues before the MPO Board meeting. 
 
MOVED BY ELLIS, SECONDED BY WILLIAMS, TO APPROVE FORWARDING A 
RECOMMENDATION TO THE MPO EXECUTIVE POLICY BOARD THAT THEY 
APPROVE THE FINAL DRAFT FINAL FY2022-2025 T.I.P., SUBJECT TO THE NORTH 
DAKOTA SIDE COST FOR THE TENSION CARD INCREASE FROM 4.1 TO 4., TO  
IDENTIFY THAT SOME AMENDMENTS ARE NECESSARY FOR THE GROUP 
PROJECTS ONCE THE COST ESTIMATES ARE PROVIDED, AND THEN ALSO FOR 
THE TIMEFRAME FOR THE LIGHT PROJECT ON 32ND AVENUE INTERCHANGE TO 
BE AMENDED; AND ON THE MINNESOTA SIDE TO ACCEPT THE ELLA ACTUAL 
LET AMOUNTS, IDENTIFY ONLY THE COSTS ONLY FOR THE ROUNDABOUT, AND 
TO ASK MNDOT, THE TRANSIT OPERATOR, AND MPO TO WORK OUT THE TRANSIT 
ISSUES BEFORE THE MPO BOARD MEETING. 
 
Voting Aye: Peterson, Ellis, Emery, Williams, Mason, Zacher, and Bergman. 
Voting Nay:  None. 
Abstain:  None. 
Absent: Kadrmas, Brooks, Bail, Halford, Hopkins, Johnson, West, Magnuson,   
  Kuharenko, Riesinger, and Christianson. 
 
MATTER OF APPROVAL OF FTA 5310 ND SIDE CANDIDATE PROJECT 
 
Kouba reported that prior to June the NDDOT had been receiving emergency funds through the 
CARES ACT and America Rescue Plan and various other COVID related bills and new funding 
sources, so they decided to, in June, put out a solicitation under the 5310 Program, which focuses 
on the elderly and individuals with disabilities.  She said that there is a bit more focus on certain 
groups of people who need extra transportation so Cities Area Transit put in an application for 
the Mobility Manger position for those funds, they put in for both wages and benefits, and with 
these funds it would be 100% federally funded so there would be no local match required. 
 
Kouba commented that the T.I.P. you just approved does show partial funding for this position 
with previous 5310 funds, so we would be looking at moving the actual spending year from FY 
2022 to FY 2023.  She added that the timing overlaps the adoption of the FY2022-2025 T.I.P. 



PROCEEDINGS OF THE 
TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
Wednesday, August 11th, 2021 
 

15 
 

and the actual award of this candidate project so if we are awarded the funds, we will need to do 
an amendment to the T.I.P. at a later time.  Staff is looking for approval of the application. 
 
Bergman stated that just as a reminder those previous funds we applied for were 2020 funding.  
Kouba added that it was an 80/20 split for the previous funds.  Bergman said that after talking to 
the NDDOT, they had mentioned that the CRRSAA funds are ARP funds.   
 
Haugen stated that we are recommending approval of the regular funding at 80/20 that is shown 
in the T.I.P. as having already been awarded to us and available, and we are taking action now on 
saying that this candidate project is meeting our local plans and is a priority, and it will go into 
the hopper and whatever award announcement is, if any, we will have to revisit our T.I.P. to 
show the new award and how it may or may not adjust this award, so today’s action is purely on 
whether this is a candidate project that meets our plan and is a priority.   
 
MOVED BY WILLIAMS, SECONDED BY ELLIS, TO APPROVE FORWARDING A 
RECOMMENDATION TO THE MPO EXECUTIVE POLICY BOARD THAT THEY 
APPROVE THE CITIES AREA TRANSIT FY2022-5310 MID-YEAR GRANT 
APPLICATION AS MEETING OUR PLANS, AND TO GIVE IT PRIORITY RANKING. 
 
Voting Aye: Peterson, Ellis, Emery, Pierce (Proxy For Mason), Zacher, Williams, and  
  Bergman. 
Voting Nay:  None. 
Abstain:  None. 
Absent: Kadrmas, Bail, Brooks, Halford, Mason, Hopkins, Johnson, West, Magnuson,  
  Kuharenko, Riesinger, and Christianson. 
 
MATTER OF WORK PROGRAM DISCUSSION (POSSIBLE AMENDMENT TO 2022 
WORK PROGRAM) 
 
Haugen reported that this is an informational item.  He stated that last month MnDOT announced 
that there was this August redistribution of funds, that if they weren’t going to be used in 
Minnesota they would be turned back, so a request went out to all MPOs asking if they had any 
use for additional funding.  He said that the original request was based on the original 
distribution formula for the planning funds in Minnesota so our initial award was around 
$300.00.  He added that originally the timeline was to have the Technical Advisory Committee 
and the MPO Executive Policy Board vet this through our August timeframe, but due to the short 
timeframe it ended up that some of the Minnesota MPOs did not have as great a use or need for 
the funds so our amount ended up being closer to $25,000 and the timeframe changed to the end 
of July so the MPO Executive Policy Board acted on this in July and so our work program has 
been amended and it is adding $25,000 to the revenue.  He added that to show the use of the 
funds in the easiest and quickest manner, that staff identified, we placed it all in increasing the 
consultant costs for the Bike/Ped Plan Update, and that action has been taken, submitted to the 
State DOTs, the work program amendment has been approved and the money has already been 
requested for transfer so that amendment process has all been taken care of.  He said, then, that 
we have additional funds and we currently have it in the work program that it would go toward 



PROCEEDINGS OF THE 
TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
Wednesday, August 11th, 2021 
 

16 
 

consultant costs for the Bike/Ped Plan, however since then there has been some discussion on the 
Minnesota side whether we should take on another study on the transportation networks in the 
Industrial Park area, but to be fair, if there are any other studies that people would like us to 
consider, and again there is only $25,000 so it won’t go far unless someone wants to augment the 
funding with more local dollars, let us know as soon as possible.  He added that if we don’t hear 
by the end of this month, and East Grand Forks formally submits a request, then we know what 
we will be working with.  He thanked MnDOT for the additional funding. 
 
Zacher said, just to give an update on where this funding is at, his understanding is that it has 
gone from Minnesota Federal Highway and it is on its way to North Dakota Federal Highway, 
but they haven’t been told that that money is there yet so that is where they are sitting at right 
now, waiting for verification from North Dakota Federal Highway that the funds are there.  
Haugen commented that we aren’t going to be able to spend it until 2022 so there is time to get it 
to North Dakota.   
 
Haugen explained that if we are going to do another study with these funds that will require 
another work program amendment process, so that takes 30 days, 60 days to process depending 
on the study involvement and everything else; so it isn’t just let’s do a study and we do it, we 
have to go through a formal amendment process to make it happen before we can start soliciting 
any responses to a study. 
 
Information only. 
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 
 A. 2021 Annual Work Program Project Update 
   
  1)     East Grand Forks Land Use Plan Update 
  2)      Grand Forks Land Use Plan Update 
  3) Aerial Photo Update 
  4) Pavement Management Update 
  5) Transit Development Program Update 
 
Haugen reported that we do have all the work program activities currently underway; we have a 
signed contract for the Transit Development Program Update and the consultant is scheduling 
some initial meetings soon.  Kouba commented that she will be talking with the consultant this 
week to get together a list of people they want for staff for this project and then they will decide 
how they will move forward with the update. 
 
Haugen stated that he would encourage those that can to take a look at the two websites for the 
Land Use Plan Updates, there is lots of good material on there. 
 
Information only 
 
 



PROCEEDINGS OF THE 
TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
Wednesday, August 11th, 2021 
 

17 
 

 B. 2020 Census Update 
 
Haugen commented that, just as a side note, tomorrow the redistricting census data from 2020 is 
being released so we will be getting our first initial glance at what the Census says our 
population was in 2020 and compare that to our current estimates and our current forecasts in the 
Land Use Plans.  He said that East Grand Forks is sort of centered on an annual increase of 
0.75% per year and Grand Forks is looking at roughly 1% currently as annual growth out to 
2050, but we will see what the 2020 Census identifies tomorrow.   
 
Information only. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
MOVED BY ELLIS, SECONDED BY BERGMAN, TO ADJOURN THE AUGUST 11TH, 
2021 MEETING OF THE TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE AT 3:29 P.M. 
 
Respectfully submitted by, 
 
Peggy McNelis, Office Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



MPO Staff Report 
Technical Advisory Committee:  

September 8, 2021 
MPO Executive Board:  

September 15, 2021 
 

 

 

 

Matter of the Update on Future Bridge Traffic Impact Study. 
 
Background: Alliant Engineering will be participating in the TAC meeting. The focus of the 
meeting is to finalize Tech Memo 3C, which focuses on the Future Build (added bridge at either 
Elks or 32nd) traffic operations.   
 
The second focus will be on the details of the first general public wide engage opportunity 
between July 27th with open comment period which lasted until August 15th. 
 
The next Ad Hoc Group meeting is scheduled for Friday, September 17th starting at 12:30 to 2:00 
pm.  Location to be determined. 
 
 
Findings and Analysis: 
• NONE 
 
Support Materials: 
• Presentation. 
• Revised Tech Memo on Build Traffic Operations. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Update on Future Bridge Traffic Impact Study  
 



TAC Meeting #7
SEPTEMBER 7, 2021 (1:30-2:30)

Future Bridge Traffic Impact Study



Agenda
TIME TOPIC

1:30 Welcome and Introductions (Earl Haugen/Tim Burkhardt)

1:35 Schedule, Tasks and Deliverables Update (Tim Burkhardt)

1:40 Updates
• Summary - Public Open House #1
• Tech Memo 3C - Revisions

2:20 Additional Questions/Discussion

2:30 Rest of TAC Agenda



Schedule Overview
Task F M A M J J A S O N D

1. Project Management

2. Public Involvement

3. Existing/Future Conditions

4. Traffic Analysis

5. Issues and Needs

6. Alternatives Development

7. Alternatives Evaluation

8. Implementation Plan

9. Study Report 



Meeting Date Agenda/Deliverables Draft to MPO MPO Sends Out 
TAC #7 9/8  Final TM 3C (response to comments) 

 Open House summary 
8/30 9/3 

Ad Hoc #4 9/17  TM 3C 
 Open House summary 
 Possible draft evaluation matrix and sample concept 

drawing depending on timing 

9/9 9/13 

TAC #8 10/13  TM #5 (Layouts) 
 TM #6 (Evaluation Results + Cost) 
 Final Purpose and Need (public/agency comments?) 

10/4 10/8 

AD Hoc #5 Mid to late Oct  TM #5 (Layouts) 
 TM #6 (Evaluation Results + Cost) 

TBD TBD 

Open House #2 Late oct/early Nov  Alternative Concepts and Evaluation Results TBD TBD 
TAC #9 11/10  Finalize layouts and evaluation results 

 TM #7 – Implementation Plan 
11/1 11/5 

Ad Hoc #6 Mid to late Nov  Final concepts and evaluation results 
 Implementation plan 

TBD TBD 

Open House #3 Late Nov to early Dec 
(combine OH and Ad 
Hoc?) 

 Final concepts and evaluation results 
 Implementation plan 

TBD TBD 

TAC #10 12/8  Draft Report (final will be via email) 
 

11/29 12/3 

 



Tasks & Deliverables Status
Task Completed Deliverables In Progress Upcoming

1. Project Management TAC Updates 1-6 TAC Update #7 Monthly TAC Updates

2. Public Involvement
Public Involvement Plan
Ad Hoc Group 1,2,3
Public Event #1

Maintain Web Site Ad Hoc Group #4 (9/17)
Public Event #2 (Oct?)

3. Existing and Future 
Conditions Tech Memo #2

4. Traffic Analysis Tech Memo #3-A, 3-B Tech Memo #3-C

5. Issues and Needs N/A Draft Purpose and Need
SOV Letters

6. Alternatives 
Development N/A Alternatives Development

7. Alternatives Evaluation N/A Alternatives Evaluation

8. Implementation Plan N/A N/A

9. Study Report N/A N/A



Summary - Public Open House (Online)



Public Open House (Online)
What We Did
• Shared study background and goals
• Shared Draft Purpose and Need and No Build Traffic and Safety information
• Got input on both



Public Open House (Online)
What We Did
• Advertising

 Public notice (5 days in advance), MPO and project email list, Facebook Ad, Both 
Cities Social Media sites, Asked Ad Hoc members to share with respective 
organizations and groups

• Host on project web site (Social Pinpoint)
 Open for comment for 3 weeks (July 26-August 23 - kept open an extra week)

• Live online presentation (Tuesday, July 27, 6:30-7:30)
 Accept input via chat and facilitate discussion
 Recording of presentation was available for 3 weeks



Public Open House (Online)
Participation
• Live Online

 Low - 13 participants (2 
Ad Hoc Group members)

• Web Traffic
 Good – see table
 40 have viewed the 

recording of the 
presentation.

WEB TRAFFIC Before 
(7/26)

During 
(as of 8/9)

This data was shown 
at previous meeting

Final
(as of 8/23)

Total Site Visits 2,186 3,512 
(+1,326)

6,605
(+3,093)

Unique Users 445 747
(+302)

1796
(+1,049)

Survey 
Responses

-- 23 301
(+278) 

Includes email sign-
ups

Map Comments -- 27 48
(+21)



Public Open House (Online)
Discussion/Comments
• Live Event

 Understanding of traffic forecasting, safety methodologies; why are we not studying 
Merrifield (a few comments)

 32nd Avenue traffic increase, school crossing safety and traffic flow, residential 
street/driveway/access (most comments)

• Online
 See next slides



Public Open House (Online)
Priorities
• 253 responses

• 40 respondents 
wrote in a comment 
for “other” priority:

 Impact on 
neighborhood 
character/quality of 
life

 Impact on property 
values

 Added option for 
flooding

 Convenience/access 
across river



Public Open House (Online)
Purpose and Need
• 264 responses (181 with 

comments)
• Comment themes include:

 Strongly Agree (156)
• Added convenience
• Reduction in traffic/congestion, 

especially on other bridges due 
to redistribution

• Both cities are growing south, 
also adds incentive for EGF to 
grow more

 Strongly Disagree (46)
• Benefit for EGF only
• Negative impact to 

neighborhoods around 32nd

• Preference for a bridge farther 
south (Merrifield)

• Increased traffic around schools



Public Open House (Online)
Schools Map
• Small sample size (32 respondents)

 48 total comments
 No individual IP address left more than 3 

comments

• Any map visitor could like/dislike comments
 248 likes / 113 dislikes

• Comment themes
 Existing Issues (10)

• Top comment theme: Currently, drivers speed past schools

 Issues Related to Elks Option (8)
• Top comment theme: Elks Option provides convenient 

access to more parts of Grand Forks

 Issues Related to 32nd Ave Option (30)
• Top comment theme: 32nd Ave has two schools right on 

corridor with many young students walking and biking



Revisions –
Tech Memo #3C: Future Build Alternatives Traffic Operations



Tech Memo #3-C – Future Build Alternatives Traffic 
Operations
Topics include:
• Forecast volume changes between No Build and 

Build for 2030 and 2045
• Traffic Mobility and Operations Analysis

 Scenario Years
• 2030 Elks Drive Bridge Conditions
• 2045 Elks Drive Bridge Conditions
• 2030 32nd Avenue Bridge Conditions
• 2045 32nd Avenue Bridge Conditions

 Segment volume-to-capacity and LOS
 Intersection LOS

• Warrants Analysis
• Mitigation Option Analysis



No Build 2030 to Elks Drive Bridge 2030 
Volume Changes



No Build 2045 to Elks Drive Bridge 2045 
Volume Changes



No Build 2030 to 32nd Avenue Bridge 2030 
Volume Changes



No Build 2045 to 32nd Avenue Bridge 2045 
Volume Changes



Traffic Operations & Mobility 
2030 Elks Drive Bridge 

LOS LOS

S Washington St & 32nd Ave S Signal C D

Cherry St & 32nd Ave S AWSC F C

Belmont Rd & 32nd Ave S AWSC D E

S Washington St & 24th Ave S Signal C C

Cherry St & 24th Ave S AWSC B A

Belmont Rd & 24th Ave S TWSC D F

Belmont Rd & Elks Drive TWSC F D

S Washington St & DeMers Ave Signal D D

Cherry St & 4th Ave S Signal A A

Belmont Rd & 4th Ave S AWSC E C

3rd Ave SE & 1st St SE Signal A A

Bygland Rd SE & Rhinehart Dr SE (Stop Control) TWSC F C

Bygland Rd SE & Rhinehart Dr SE (Roundabout) RAB A A

Rhinehart Dr SE & Greenway Blvd SE TWSC B B

Elks Dr Bridge & Rhinehart Dr SE TWSC B B

Bygland Rd SE & Greenway Blvd SE TWSC F B

Bygland Rd SE & 190th St SW TWSC B B

Bygland Rd SE/Harley Dr & TH 220 TWSC B A

TH 220 & US 2 TWSC B B

Rhinehart Dr SE & 190th St SE AWSC A A

Note: Delay and LOS for TWSC intersections reflect the worst approach

AM Peak 
Hour

PM Peak 
HourControl 

Type
Intersection



Traffic Operations & Mobility 
2045 Elks Drive Bridge 

LOS LOS

S Washington St & 32nd Ave S Signal D D

Cherry St & 32nd Ave S AWSC F C

Belmont Rd & 32nd Ave S AWSC F F

S Washington St & 24th Ave S Signal C D

Cherry St & 24th Ave S AWSC B B

Belmont Rd & 24th Ave S TWSC F F

Belmont Rd & Elks Drive TWSC F E

S Washington St & DeMers Ave Signal D D

Cherry St & 4th Ave S Signal A A

Belmont Rd & 4th Ave S AWSC E C

3rd Ave SE & 1st St SE Signal A A

Bygland Rd SE & Rhinehart Dr SE (Stop Control) TWSC F C

Bygland Rd SE & Rhinehart Dr SE (Roundabout) RAB A A

Rhinehart Dr SE & Greenway Blvd SE TWSC B B

Elks Dr Bridge & Rhinehart Dr SE TWSC C C

Bygland Rd SE & Greenway Blvd SE Signal B A

Bygland Rd SE & 190th St SW TWSC B B

Bygland Rd SE/Harley Dr & TH 220 TWSC B A

TH 220 & US 2 TWSC C C

Rhinehart Dr SE & 190th St SE AWSC A A

Note: Delay and LOS for TWSC intersections reflect the worst approach

AM Peak 
Hour

PM Peak 
HourControl 

Type
Intersection



Traffic Operations & Mobility 
2030 32nd Avenue Bridge 

LOS LOS

S Washington St & 32nd Ave S Signal D D

Cherry St & 32nd Ave S AWSC F C

Belmont Rd & 32nd Ave S AWSC F F

S Washington St & 24th Ave S Signal B C

Cherry St & 24th Ave S AWSC A A

Belmont Rd & 24th Ave S TWSC B C

Belmont Rd & Elks Drive TWSC B B

S Washington St & DeMers Ave Signal D D

Cherry St & 4th Ave S Signal A A

Belmont Rd & 4th Ave S AWSC E C

3rd Ave SE & 1st St SE Signal A A

Bygland Rd SE & Rhinehart Dr SE (Stop Control) TWSC F C

Bygland Rd SE & Rhinehart Dr SE (Roundabout) RAB A A

Rhinehart Dr SE & Greenway Blvd SE TWSC B B

32nd Ave Bridge & Rhinehart Dr SE TWSC B B

Bygland Rd SE & Greenway Blvd SE TWSC F B

Bygland Rd SE & 190th St SW TWSC B B

Bygland Rd SE/Harley Dr & TH 220 TWSC B A

TH 220 & US 2 TWSC B B

Rhinehart Dr SE & 190th St SE AWSC A A

Note: Delay and LOS for TWSC intersections reflect the worst approach

AM Peak 
Hour

PM Peak 
HourControl 

Type
Intersection



Traffic Operations & Mobility 
2045 32nd Avenue Bridge 

LOS LOS

S Washington St & 32nd Ave S Signal E D

Cherry St & 32nd Ave S AWSC F F

Belmont Rd & 32nd Ave S AWSC F F

S Washington St & 24th Ave S Signal C C

Cherry St & 24th Ave S AWSC A A

Belmont Rd & 24th Ave S TWSC C C

Belmont Rd & Elks Drive TWSC B C

S Washington St & DeMers Ave Signal D D

Cherry St & 4th Ave S Signal A A

Belmont Rd & 4th Ave S AWSC F C

3rd Ave SE & 1st St SE Signal A A

Bygland Rd SE & Rhinehart Dr SE (Stop Control) TWSC F C

Bygland Rd SE & Rhinehart Dr SE (Roundabout) RAB B A

Rhinehart Dr SE & Greenway Blvd SE TWSC B B

32nd Ave Bridge & Rhinehart Dr SE TWSC C B

Bygland Rd SE & Greenway Blvd SE Signal A A

Bygland Rd SE & 190th St SW TWSC B B

Bygland Rd SE/Harley Dr & TH 220 TWSC B A

TH 220 & US 2 TWSC B C

Rhinehart Dr SE & 190th St SE AWSC A A

Note: Delay and LOS for TWSC intersections reflect the worst approach

AM Peak 
Hour

PM Peak 
HourControl 

Type
Intersection



Warrants Analysis
2045 Warrants Analysis Summary

Warrant 1 - 
8-Hour Vehicle 

Volumes

Warrant 2 - 
4-Hour Vehicle 

Volumes

Warrant 3 -
Peak Hour

Criteria A -
Signal Justified

Criteria C -
Minimum 
Volumes

Criteria C -
Minor Approach

Max Delay

School Pedestrian 

Crossing(1)

4th Ave & Belmont Rd Signal , AWSC NOT MET NOT MET MET MET MET MET MET

32nd Ave & Belmont Rd Signal , AWSC NOT MET MET MET MET NOT MET MET NOT MET

32nd Ave & Cherry St AWSC NOT MET NOT MET NOT MET NOT MET MET MET MET

Bygland Rd & Rhinehart Dr Signal , AWSC MET MET MET MET NOT MET NOT MET NOT MET

4th Ave & Belmont Rd AWSC NOT MET NOT MET NOT MET NOT MET NOT MET MET MET

24th Ave & Belmont Rd Signal , AWSC MET MET MET MET NOT MET MET NOT MET

32nd Ave & Belmont Rd Signal , AWSC NOT MET MET MET MET MET MET NOT MET

32nd Ave & Cherry St Signal , AWSC NOT MET MET MET MET MET MET MET

Elks Dr & Belmont Rd Signal , AWSC NOT MET MET MET MET NOT MET MET NOT MET

Bygland Rd & Rhinehart Dr Signal , AWSC NOT MET MET MET MET NOT MET MET NOT MET

4th Ave & Belmont Rd AWSC NOT MET NOT MET NOT MET NOT MET NOT MET MET MET

32nd Ave & Belmont Rd Signal , AWSC NOT MET MET MET MET MET MET NOT MET

32nd Ave & Cherry St Signal , AWSC NOT MET MET MET MET NOT MET MET MET

Bygland Rd & Rhinehart Dr Signal , AWSC NOT MET MET MET MET NOT MET MET NOT MET
Notes:

(1) Multiway stop control may be considered at locations where pedestrian crossings for a school are present, per the "Optional" consideration items in the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD).

Warrants Met

Signal Warrants All-Way Stop Control Warrants

No Build

Elks 
Bridge

32nd 
Bridge

Scenario Intersection



Mitigation Analysis Methodology
• Mitigation Hierarchy

1. Add turn lanes without changes in traffic control
2. Convert to all-way stop-control with minimum turn lane additions
3. Convert to signalized control with minimum turn lane additions
4. Convert to a single-lane roundabout

• Additional considerations at schools and crash issue intersections



Mitigation Summary



Mitigation Summary



Tim Burkhardt
tburkhardt@alliant-inc.com

www.forks2forksbridge.com/info

Questions and Discussion



GRAND  FORKS ‐EAST  GRAND  FORKS  
FUTURE  BRIDGE  TRAFF IC   IMPACT  STUDY  

 

Alliant No. 121‐0019 

PAGE 1 

Transmittal Information 

To:   Earl Haugen (Grand Forks‐East Grand Forks MPO) 

From:  
Tim Burkhardt, AICP, MPH (Alliant Engineering) 
Mike Kondziolka, PE, PTOE (Alliant Engineering) 

Date:  9/2/2021 

Subject:  Technical Memorandum #3‐C: Future Build Alternatives Traffic Operations 

1. Introduction 
This is the fifth in a series of technical memoranda for the Grand Forks‐East Grand Forks Future Bridge Traffic 
Impact Study. It presents a summary of the traffic operations analysis for the future bridge “Build” alternatives 
at Elks Drive and 32nd Avenue S, as well as the traffic control warrants analysis and mitigation options for the No 
Build and Build scenarios. 

2. Existing and Future Area Characteristics 
Refer to Technical Memorandum #2 for documentation of the transportation system and  infrastructure, the 
built and natural environment, and land uses for existing and planned future conditions. 

3. Traffic Analysis 
A traffic analysis was completed to assess the traffic operations and safety performance of the roadway network 
on both sides of the Red River in Grand Forks and East Grand Forks to assess existing conditions, forecast 2030 
conditions, and  forecast 2045 conditions under scenarios with no new bridge  (No Build). Refer  to Technical 
Memorandum #3‐B for documentation of the Existing and No Build Conditions analysis. 

3.1  FORECAST  TRAFFIC  VOLUMES  AND  PATTERNS  

Refer to Technical Memorandum #3‐A for documentation of the existing and forecast future traffic volumes, 
data sources, volume development, and forecasting methodology. 

The changes in traffic volumes from the forecast 2030 and 2045 No Build scenarios to 2030 and forecast 2045 
Build Conditions were illustrated to show the magnitude of the anticipated volume changes on the study area 
road network with each river crossing alternative compared to  if no new river crossing was constructed. The 
average daily traffic (ADT) volume data for all scenarios was provided by the Advanced Traffic Analysis Center 
(ATAC) from travel demand modeling  in the Grand Forks / East Grand Forks region completed for the Grand 
Forks‐East Grand Forks Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO).  

Maps showing the forecast volume changes between the No Build vs. Elks Drive Bridge Conditions for 2030 and 
2045  are  provided  in  Figure  3‐1  and  Figure  3‐2,  respectively. Maps  showing  the  forecast  volume  changes 
between the No Build vs. 32nd Ave Bridge Conditions for 2030 and 2045 are provided in Figure 3‐3 and Figure 3‐4, 
respectively.  



24th Ave S

Greenway Blvd

B
ygland R

d

C
h
e

rr
y
 S

t

B
e

lm
o
n

t 
R

d

R
h
in

e
h
a

rt
 D

r

W
a

s
h

in
g
to

n
 S

t

32nd Ave S

E
lk
s 

D
r

Demers Ave

190th St SW

4th Ave S

4,730-1,8802,850

3
,8

4
0

-9
6

0
2

,8
8

0

2
5

0
+

8
0

3
3

0

7
,0

6
0

-2
,0

6
0

5
,0

0
0

3
4

,6
8

0
-4

,2
3

0
3

0
,4

5
0

9,460
-2,8506,610

90
+2,900

2,990

5
3

0
-6

0

4
7

0

2,330

-340

1,990

5,520

-1,830

3,690

0
+6,840
6,840

2
,1

9
0

+
1
,5

1
0

3
,7

0
0

2
,9

3
0

-1
0

0

2
,8

3
0

8,220+3008,520

5
,1

5
0

-2
5

0
4

,9
0

0

11
,3

80
-4

,2
00

7,
18

0

3
, 1

3
0

-2
0

3
,1

1
0

2
, 7

1
0

-3
0

0
2

,4
1

0

11,440

-3,730

7,710

2,170
+1,150

3,320

1,780
+1,620
3,400

3,960
+630
4,590

2
9

,8
3

0
-2

,9
2

0
2

6
,9

1
0

7
,4

3
0

+
1

,6
1

0
9

,0
4

0

2
7

,6
0

0
-1

,8
0

0
2

5
,8

0
0

21,830
-590

21,240

3
0

0
+

3
,3

8
0

3
,6

8
0

26,010
-4,050

21,960

8
,5

2
0

-1
,4

2
0

7
,1

0
0

5
0

- 4
0

1
0

4,900
+1,850
6,750

8,800
-2,930
5,870

2,870
+1,920
4,790

1,590
+1,400
2,990

1,710+1,6603,370

3
0

0
+

3
,0

0
0

3
,3

0
0

31
,1

00
-5

,5
90

25
,5

10

3,5
30

+120

3,6
50

10,710
-3,090
7,620

6
,1

2
0

+
3

,4
5

0
9

,5
7

0

Future Bridge Traffic Impact Study Figure 3-1

Changes in Forecast Traffic Volumes between 2030 No Build and 2030 Elks Drive Bridge Conditions

Source: ESRI World Imagery Basemap

¯

Legend

0 0.50.25
Miles

Reduction of 3,000 or More Cars Per Day

Reduction of 1,500 to 3,000 Cars Per Day

Reduction of 500 to 1,500 Cars Per Day

Reduction of up to 500 Cars Per Day

Increase of up to 500 Cars Per Day

Increase of 500 to 1,500 Cars Per Day

Increase of 1,500 to 3,000 Cars Per Day

Increase of 3,000 or More Cars Per Day

(/2

(/2B

220

X,XXX

Annual Average
Daily Traffic (AADT):

2030 No Build
Increase/Decrease
2030 Build

+/-X,XXX

X,XXX



24th Ave S

Greenway Blvd

B
ygland R

d

C
h
e

rr
y
 S

t

B
e

lm
o
n

t 
R

d

R
h
in

e
h
a

rt
 D

r

W
a

s
h

in
g
to

n
 S

t

32nd Ave S

E
lk
s 

D
r

Demers Ave

190th St SW

4th Ave S

6,090-2,3203,770

2
5

0
+

5
0

3
0

0

4
,3

7
0

-1
, 1

7
0

3
,2

0
0

8
,0

1
0

-2
,5

8
0

5
,4

3
0

3
6

,9
7

0
-4

,9
3

0
3

2
,0

4
0

70
+1,650

1,720

12,110
-3,2508,860

6
8

0
-8

0

6
0

0

5,850

-1,880

3,970

2,450

+1,120

3,570

0
+7,780
7,780

2
,3

3
0

+
2
,1

5
0

4
,4

8
0

3
,2

7
0

-4
2

0

2
,8

5
0

6
,1

1
0

-6
8

0
5

,4
3

0

4
, 1

1
0

-1
5

0
3

,9
6

0

12
,6

50
-5

,3
50

7,
30

0

11,040+8011,120

3
, 3

4
0

-5
6

0
2

,7
8

0

8
,7

5
0

+
9

5
0

9
,7

0
0

2,200
+2,730

4,930

12,090

-4,170

7,920

1,860
+2,270
4,130

3
2

,6
8

0
-2

,2
5

0
3

0
,4

3
0

3
1

,8
8

0
-2

,4
8

0
2

9
,4

0
0

24,020
-1,250
22,770

2
9

0
+

5
,5

6
0

5
,8

5
0

27,960
-5,060

22,900

9
,6

9
0

-1
,8

3
0

7
,8

6
0

6
0

- 5
0

1
0

5,330
+1,450
6,780

3,690
+1,820
5,510

9,210
-3,580
5,630

3,430
+1,740
5,170

1,490
+2,330
3,820

1,840+2,2904,130

33
,6

40
-6

,3
80

27
,2

60

3,7
40

-1
20

3,6
20

2
9

0
+

1
,7

0
0

1
,9

9
0

11,230
-3,900
7,330

7
,1

6
0

+
3

,8
8

0
1
1

,0
4

0

Future Bridge Traffic Impact Study Figure 3-2

Changes in Forecast Traffic Volumes between 2045 No Build and 2045 Elks Drive Bridge Conditions

Source: ESRI World Imagery Basemap

¯

Legend

0 0.50.25
Miles

Reduction of 3,000 or More Cars Per Day

Reduction of 1,500 to 3,000 Cars Per Day

Reduction of 500 to 1,500 Cars Per Day

Reduction of up to 500 Cars Per Day

Increase of up to 500 Cars Per Day

Increase of 500 to 1,500 Cars Per Day

Increase of 1,500 to 3,000 Cars Per Day

Increase of 3,000 or More Cars Per Day

(/2

(/2B

220

X,XXX

Annual Average
Daily Traffic (AADT):

2045 No Build
Increase/Decrease
2045 Build

+/-X,XXX

X,XXX



24th Ave S

Greenway Blvd

B
ygland R

d

C
h
e

rr
y
 S

t

B
e

lm
o
n

t 
R

d

R
h
in

e
h
a

rt
 D

r

W
a

s
h

in
g
to

n
 S

t

32nd Ave S

E
lk
s 

D
r

Demers Ave

190th St SW

4th Ave S

4,730-2,0102,720

3
,8

4
0

-8
8

0
2

,9
6

0

2
5

0
+

9
0

3
4

0

7
,0

6
0

-2
,1

0
0

4
,9

6
0

3
4

,6
8

0
-3

,7
6

0
3

0
,9

2
0

9,460
-2,8406,620

90
+3,690

3,780

5
3

0
-8

0

4
5

0

2,330

-510

1,820

0
+7

,0
20

7,
02

0

5,520

-1,660

3,860

2
,1

9
0

+
1
,8

8
0

4
,0

7
0

2
,9

3
0

-1
5

0

2
,7

8
0

8,220+3108,530

2,170
+780

2,950

5
,1

5
0

-1
9

0
4

,9
6

0

11
,3

80
-4

,2
70

7,
11

0

3
, 1

3
0

+
1

6
0

3
,2

9
0

2
, 7

1
0

-4
8

0
2

,2
3

0

11,440

-3,460

7,980

7
,4

3
0

-1
,3

6
0

6
,0

7
0

1,780
+2,040
3,820

3,960
-470
3,490

2
9

,8
3

0
-2

,2
5

0
2

7
,5

8
0

2
7

,6
0

0
-1

,6
5

0
2

5
,9

5
0

3
0

0
+

2
,7

8
0

3
,0

8
0

21,830
+1,370
23,200

26,010
-4,280

21,730

8
,5

2
0

-1
,6

2
0

6
,9

0
0

5
0

- 3
0

2
0

4,900
+3,620
8,520

1,590
-210
1,380

8,800
-2,910
5,890

2,870
+3,970
6,840

1,710+2,0903,800

3
0

0
+

3
,8

1
0

4
,1

1
0

31
,1

00
-5

,4
10

25
,6

90

3,5
30

+80

3,6
10

10,710
-3,160
7,550

6
,1

2
0

-2
,0

5
0

4
,0

7
0

Future Bridge Traffic Impact Study Figure 3-3

Changes in Forecast Traffic Volumes between 2030 No Build and 2030 32nd Ave Bridge Conditions

Source: ESRI World Imagery Basemap

¯

Legend

0 0.50.25
Miles

Reduction of 3,000 or More Cars Per Day

Reduction of 1,500 to 3,000 Cars Per Day

Reduction of 500 to 1,500 Cars Per Day

Reduction of up to 500 Cars Per Day

Increase of up to 500 Cars Per Day

Increase of 500 to 1,500 Cars Per Day

Increase of 1,500 to 3,000 Cars Per Day

Increase of 3,000 or More Cars Per Day

(/2

(/2B

220

X,XXX

Annual Average
Daily Traffic (AADT):

2030 No Build
Increase/Decrease
2030 Build

+/-X,XXX

X,XXX



24th Ave S

Greenway Blvd

B
ygland R

d

C
h
e

rr
y
 S

t

B
e

lm
o
n

t 
R

d

R
h
in

e
h
a

rt
 D

r

W
a

s
h

in
g
to

n
 S

t

32nd Ave S

E
lk
s 

D
r

Demers Ave

190th St SW

4th Ave S

6,090-2,6103,480

2
5

0
+

6
0

3
1

0

4
,3

7
0

-1
, 1

6
0

3
,2

1
0

8
,0

1
0

-2
,5

5
0

5
,4

6
0

3
6

,9
7

0
-4

,1
8

0
3

2
,7

9
0

70
+4,560

4,630

12,110
-3,5008,610

2,450

-500

1,950

0
+8

,2
00

8,
20

0

6
8

0
-1

5
0

5
3

0

5,850

-1,660

4,190

2
,3

3
0

+
2
,6

4
0

4
,9

7
0

3
,2

7
0

-3
6

0

2
,9

1
0

2,200
+710

2,910

6
,1

1
0

-5
4

0
5

,5
7

0

4
, 1

1
0

+
0

4
,1

1
0

12
,6

50
-4

,8
20

7,
83

0

11,040-21010,830

3
, 3

4
0

-9
6

0
2

,3
8

0

12,090

-3,710

8,380

8
,7

5
0

-2
,0

0
0

6
,7

5
0

1,860
+2,940
4,800

3,690
-10

3,680

3
2

,6
8

0
-2

,4
8

0
3

0
,2

0
0

3
1

,8
8

0
-2

,3
1

0
2

9
,5

7
0

24,020
-90

23,930

2
9

0
+

3
,1

4
0

3
,4

3
0

27,960
-4,620

23,340

9
,6

9
0

-1
,6

6
0

8
,0

3
0

6
0

- 5
0

1
0

5,330
+3,950
9,280

1,490
-130
1,360

9,210
-2,960
6,250

3,430
+4,640
8,070

1,840+2,9604,800

2
9

0
+

4
,6

5
0

4
,9

4
0

33
,6

40
-5

,7
60

27
,8

80

3,7
40

-1
40

3,6
00

11,230
-3,230
8,000

7
,1

6
0

-2
,4

9
0

4
,6

7
0

Future Bridge Traffic Impact Study Figure 3-4

Changes in Forecast Traffic Volumes between 2045 No Build and 2045 32nd Ave Bridge Conditions

Source: ESRI World Imagery Basemap

¯

Legend

0 0.50.25
Miles

Reduction of 3,000 or More Cars Per Day

Reduction of 1,500 to 3,000 Cars Per Day

Reduction of 500 to 1,500 Cars Per Day

Reduction of up to 500 Cars Per Day

Increase of up to 500 Cars Per Day

Increase of 500 to 1,500 Cars Per Day

Increase of 1,500 to 3,000 Cars Per Day

Increase of 3,000 or More Cars Per Day

(/2

(/2B

220

X,XXX

Annual Average
Daily Traffic (AADT):

2045 No Build
Increase/Decrease
2045 Build

+/-X,XXX

X,XXX



GRAND  FORKS ‐EAST  GRAND  FORKS  
FUTURE  BRIDGE  TRAFF IC   IMPACT  STUDY  

 

Alliant No. 121‐0019 

PAGE 6 

As shown in the figures, the two bridge options would be expected to significantly reduce traffic in the northern 
half  of  the  study  area, with  the most  significant  reductions  occurring  along  S Washington  Street, DeMers 
Avenue/4th Avenue S, Belmont Road, Minnesota Avenue/1st Street SE across the Point Bridge, Bygland Road SE 
north of Greenway Boulevard SE, and on US 2. These reductions are important because the roadway segments 
on S Washington Street, DeMers Avenue/4th Avenue S, and Minnesota Avenue/1st Street SE across the Point 
Bridge were forecast to approach or exceed capacity by 2045 under No Build conditions (without an additional 
bridge).  

The most significant increases in traffic associated with the bridge options would be expected to occur in the 
southern  half  of  the  study  roadway  network  along  Greenway  Boulevard  SE,  Rhinehart  Drive  SE  south  of 
Greenway Boulevard SE, Bygland Road SE south of Greenway Boulevard, 190th Street SW, TH 220, and along 24th 
Avenue S and 32nd Avenue S. The Elks Drive bridge option spreads the volume increases between the parallel 
east‐west roads of Greenway Boulevard SE and 190th Street SW on the East Grand Forks side of the bridge, and 
between 24th Avenue S and 32nd Avenue S on the Grand Forks side. The 32nd Avenue S bridge option has more 
concentrated volume growth along 32nd Avenue S and 190th Street SW. Both bridge options would primarily 
serve passenger vehicle traffic and not truck traffic. 

3.2  FUTURE  BUILD  TRAFFIC  OPERATIONS  AND  MOBILITY  

A traffic operations analysis was conducted to identify the need for improvements and understand anticipated 
traffic operations with the potential bridge options. This Build Conditions traffic operations analysis assesses the 
projected future mobility in the study area with a new bridge at either Elks Drive or 32nd Avenue S.  

The programmed improvement to convert the existing two‐way stop controlled (TWSC) intersection at Bygland 
Road  SE & Greenway  Boulevard  SE  to  a  signalized  intersection was  included  in  the  2045  Build  Conditions 
modeling.  The programmed  conversion of  the Bygland Road  SE & Rhinehart Drive  SE  intersection  from  its 
current condition as a side street stop controlled intersection to a single‐lane roundabout (RAB) was evaluated 
for both 2030 and 2045 Build Conditions. Because this project is in consideration of being removed from the 
program, the intersection was also analyzed under its existing geometry and intersection control configuration. 
The  results  for  both  conditions  are  provided  in  the  2030  and  2045  Build  Conditions  intersection  traffic 
operations analysis tables. 

The  baseline  conditions  for  the  Build  alternatives  assumed  no  changes  from  the  2030  and  2045 No  Build 
conditions other than the addition of the proposed bridges with minimal traffic control and geometric changes 
at the intersections where the proposed bridges would terminate. The assumed baseline conditions for the new 
intersections where the proposed bridges would connect to Rhinehart Drive SE  included stop control on the 
new eastbound approach with a  left turn  lane and a right turn storage  lane (same under both options). The 
intersection on Belmont Road where the Elks Drive Bridge would connect was also assumed to  include a  left 
turn  lane and a right turn storage  lane on the bridge approach, and maintained the current side‐street stop 
control on Elks Drive. The bridge connection for the 32nd Ave Bridge option was assumed to maintain the all‐
way stop control (AWSC) currently in place at the 32nd Avenue S and Belmont Road intersection and included a 
single shared left/through/right lane on the westbound bridge approach. The lane geometry and traffic control 
on all approaches at the new bridge connection intersections other than the new bridge approaches were kept 
the same as existing conditions. 



GRAND  FORKS ‐EAST  GRAND  FORKS  
FUTURE  BRIDGE  TRAFF IC   IMPACT  STUDY  

 

Alliant No. 121‐0019 

PAGE 7 

3.2.1 Roadway Segment Analysis 

Using  the same methodology as outlined  in Technical Memorandum #3‐B, a  roadway segment analysis was 
completed for the study area under each of the alternative bridge conditions. The roadway segment analysis is 
a planning‐level comparison of the forecast ADT volumes against the estimated capacity for each facility type. 
All information used in the volume‐to‐capacity (V/C) analysis, including forecast ADTs and roadway capacities, 
were  provided  by ATAC.  This  information  included  the  volume  and  capacity  data  from  the  travel  demand 
modeling of the Grand Forks and East Grand Forks area for the 2030 and 2045 forecast year Build Conditions 
for each bridge alternative. 

The  segment  LOS  based  on  V/C  ratio  for  the  study  road  segments  under  forecast  2030  Elks  Drive  Bridge 
Conditions, 2045 Elks Drive Bridge Conditions, 2030 32nd Ave Bridge Conditions,  and 2045 32nd Ave Bridge 
Conditions are provided in Figures 3‐5 through 3‐8. 
   



24th Ave S

Greenway Blvd

Bygland Rd

C
he

rry
 S

t

Be
lm

on
t R

d

R
hi

ne
ha

rt 
D

rW
as

hi
ng

to
n 

S
t

32nd Ave S

Elks
 D

r

Demers Ave

190th St SW

4th Ave S

Future Bridge Traffic Impact Study Figure 3-5
2030 Elks Drive Bridge Segment Volume/Capacity and Level of Service

Source: ESRI World Imagery Basemap

¯

Legend

0 0.50.25
Miles

0.00 - 0.60 (LOS A)
0.61 - 0.70 (LOS B)
0.71 - 0.80 (LOS C)
0.81 - 0.90 (LOS D)
0.91 - 1.00 (LOS E)
1.01 or Greater (LOS F)

(/2

220



24th Ave S

Greenway Blvd

Bygland Rd

C
he

rry
 S

t

Be
lm

on
t R

d

R
hi

ne
ha

rt 
D

rW
as

hi
ng

to
n 

S
t

32nd Ave S

Elks
 D

r

Demers Ave

190th St SW

4th Ave S

Future Bridge Traffic Impact Study Figure 3-6
2045 Elks Drive Bridge Segment Volume/Capacity and Level of Service

Source: ESRI World Imagery Basemap

¯

Legend

0 0.50.25
Miles

0.00 - 0.60 (LOS A)
0.61 - 0.70 (LOS B)
0.71 - 0.80 (LOS C)
0.81 - 0.90 (LOS D)
0.91 - 1.00 (LOS E)
1.01 or Greater (LOS F)

(/2

220



24th Ave S

Greenway Blvd

Bygland Rd

C
he

rry
 S

t

Be
lm

on
t R

d

R
hi

ne
ha

rt 
D

rW
as

hi
ng

to
n 

S
t

32nd Ave S

Elks
 D

r

Demers Ave

190th St SW

4th Ave S

Future Bridge Traffic Impact Study Figure 3-7
2030 32nd Ave Bridge Segment Volume/Capacity and Level of Service

Source: ESRI World Imagery Basemap

¯

Legend

0 0.50.25
Miles

0.00 - 0.60 (LOS A)
0.61 - 0.70 (LOS B)
0.71 - 0.80 (LOS C)
0.81 - 0.90 (LOS D)
0.91 - 1.00 (LOS E)
1.01 or Greater (LOS F)

(/2

220



24th Ave S

Greenway Blvd

Bygland Rd

C
he

rry
 S

t

Be
lm

on
t R

d

R
hi

ne
ha

rt 
D

rW
as

hi
ng

to
n 

S
t

32nd Ave S

Elks
 D

r

Demers Ave

190th St SW

4th Ave S

Future Bridge Traffic Impact Study Figure 3-8
2045 32nd Ave Bridge Segment Volume/Capacity and Level of Service

Source: ESRI World Imagery Basemap

¯

Legend

0 0.50.25
Miles

0.00 - 0.60 (LOS A)
0.61 - 0.70 (LOS B)
0.71 - 0.80 (LOS C)
0.81 - 0.90 (LOS D)
0.91 - 1.00 (LOS E)
1.01 or Greater (LOS F)

(/2

220



GRAND  FORKS ‐EAST  GRAND  FORKS  
FUTURE  BRIDGE  TRAFF IC   IMPACT  STUDY  

 

Alliant No. 121‐0019 

PAGE 12 

Based on  the  forecast ADTs and  segment  capacities, all  roads within  the  study area would be expected  to 
operate within  capacity  through  the 2030  forecast year under both bridge alternatives. All  roads would be 
expected to operate within capacity in 2045 under the Elks Drive Bridge alternative; however, the S Washington 
Street  segment between DeMers Avenue  / 4th Avenue S and 24th Avenue S would be expected  to begin  to 
approach capacity under 2045 32nd Ave Bridge Conditions, when it would be expected to operate at LOS E.  

There are multiple  factors  that  influence  segment  capacity.  Some of  these  include  facility  type, number of 
through lanes, presence of turn lanes, and the presence of and type of median. While intersection capacity plays 
a critical and often controlling role in the capacity of a roadway network, providing adequate roadway capacity 
for the anticipated volume levels is critical to providing adequate vehicle mobility.  

3.2.2 Intersection Traffic Operations Analysis 

The Build Conditions intersection traffic operations analysis was conducted using the same methodology as was 
used for the Existing and No Build Conditions analysis. Refer to Technical Memorandum #3‐B for details on the 
analysis methodology.  

3.2.2.1 2030 Elks Drive Bridge Conditions 

The intersection delay and LOS for the study intersections during the AM and PM peak hours under 2030 Elks 
Drive Bridge Conditions are provided in Table 3‐1. 



GRAND  FORKS ‐EAST  GRAND  FORKS  
FUTURE  BRIDGE  TRAFF IC   IMPACT  STUDY  

 

Alliant No. 121‐0019 

PAGE 13 

Table 3‐1 – 2030 Elks Drive Bridge Conditions Intersection Delay and LOS 

Intersection 
Control 

Type 

AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour 

Delay 
(s/veh) 

LOS 
Delay 
(s/veh) 

LOS 

S Washington St & 32nd Ave S Signal 33.2 C 46.6 D 
Cherry St & 32nd Ave S AWSC 96.9 F 15.1 C 

Belmont Rd & 32nd Ave S AWSC 28.3 D 43.9 E 
S Washington St & 24th Ave S Signal 21.8 C 31.7 C 

Cherry St & 24th Ave S AWSC 10.4 B 9.8 A 
Belmont Rd & 24th Ave S TWSC 25.8 D 52.4 F 
Belmont Rd & Elks Drive TWSC 105.8 F 27.5 D 

S Washington St & DeMers Ave Signal 40.5 D 38.2 D 
Cherry St & 4th Ave S Signal 6.2 A 5.5 A 

Belmont Rd & 4th Ave S AWSC 38.2 E 18.2 C 
3rd Ave SE & 1st St SE Signal 7.8 A 6.4 A 

Bygland Rd SE & Rhinehart Dr SE (Stop Control) TWSC 63.3 F 20.0 C 
Bygland Rd SE & Rhinehart Dr SE (Roundabout) RAB 9.4 A 6.2 A 

Rhinehart Dr SE & Greenway Blvd SE TWSC 10.2 B 10.4 B 
Elks Dr Bridge & Rhinehart Dr SE TWSC 14.0 B 12.7 B 

Bygland Rd SE & Greenway Blvd SE TWSC 78.8 F 11.8 B 
Bygland Rd SE & 190th St SW TWSC 10.4 B 10.4 B 

Bygland Rd SE/Harley Dr & TH 220 TWSC 10.2 B 9.4 A 
TH 220 & US 2 TWSC 13.1 B 13.9 B 

Rhinehart Dr SE & 190th St SE AWSC 8.2 A 8.6 A 
Note: Delay and LOS for TWSC intersections reflect the worst approach 

Given the expectation of traffic shifting from the Point Bridge to the new bridge at Elks Drive, operations at 
Belmont Road & 4th Avenue S are expected  to  improve  in  the Elks Drive Bridge  scenario.  In 2030 No Build 
Conditions this intersection was expected to operate at LOS F in both peak hours, but with the traffic diversion 
to the proposed Elks Drive bridge, the current all‐way stop design would be expected to operate at LOS E in the 
AM peak hour and LOS C in PM peak hour.  

Multiple intersections along Belmont Road see degradation in operations compared to the No Build alternative 
in this scenario. The side‐street stop controlled intersections at 24th Avenue S and Elks Drive would be expected 
to operate unacceptably on the stop controlled approaches, with 24th Avenue S failing (LOS F) in the PM peak 
hour and Elks Drive failing (LOS F) in the AM peak hour due to the additional traffic using the bridge.  

The new intersection on Rhinehart Drive SE with the proposed Elks Drive Bridge would be expected to operate 
efficiently  (LOS B on the stopped approach) with the assumed turn  lane and side‐street stop control on the 
eastbound bridge approach. The low northbound and southbound through volumes on Rhinehart Drive SE at 
this intersection would result in minimal conflicts with the turning movements going to and from the bridge. 



GRAND  FORKS ‐EAST  GRAND  FORKS  
FUTURE  BRIDGE  TRAFF IC   IMPACT  STUDY  

 

Alliant No. 121‐0019 

PAGE 14 

The all‐way stop controlled intersections on 32nd Avenue S at Belmont Road and Cherry Street would also be 
expected to reach or exceed capacity with the Elks Drive Bridge. This indicates that the anticipated traffic pattern 
changes would require improvements in traffic control or additional turn lanes at these intersections. 

On the East Grand Forks side of the bridge, AM peak hour operations at the Bygland Road SE and Greenway 
Boulevard  SE  intersection would be  expected  to operate  at  LOS  F  in  the 2030  Elks Bridge  scenario due  to 
increased volume using Greenway Boulevard SE to access the bridge. Operations at Bygland Road SE & Rhinehart 
Drive  SE would  be  expected  to  improve with  the  Elks  Drive  Bridge,  as  both  the  stop  control  option  and 
roundabout option improve from No Build Conditions in the AM peak hour. However, if no improvements were 
made to this intersection and the existing geometry and traffic control were maintained, significant delay would 
be expected on the Rhinehart Drive SE approach, which would be anticipated to operate at LOS F  in the AM 
peak hour under 2030 Elks Drive Bridge Conditions.  

3.2.2.2 2045 Elks Drive Bridge Conditions 

The intersection delay and LOS for the study intersections during the AM and PM peak hours under 2045 Elks 
Drive Bridge Conditions are provided in Table 3‐2. 



GRAND  FORKS ‐EAST  GRAND  FORKS  
FUTURE  BRIDGE  TRAFF IC   IMPACT  STUDY  

 

Alliant No. 121‐0019 

PAGE 15 

Table 3‐2 – 2045 Elks Drive Bridge Conditions Intersection Delay and LOS 

Intersection 
Control 

Type 

AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour 

Delay 
(s/veh) 

LOS 
Delay 
(s/veh) 

LOS 

S Washington St & 32nd Ave S Signal 36.6 D 48.2 D 
Cherry St & 32nd Ave S AWSC 222.4 F 23.2 C 

Belmont Rd & 32nd Ave S AWSC 78.8 F 110.3 F 
S Washington St & 24th Ave S Signal 28.5 C 36.4 D 

Cherry St & 24th Ave S AWSC 14.1 B 11.6 B 
Belmont Rd & 24th Ave S TWSC 89.2 F 405.7 F 
Belmont Rd & Elks Drive TWSC 154.6 F 41.3 E 

S Washington St & DeMers Ave Signal 47.7 D 37.2 D 
Cherry St & 4th Ave S Signal 6.5 A 5.7 A 

Belmont Rd & 4th Ave S AWSC 38.3 E 18.6 C 
3rd Ave SE & 1st St SE Signal 7.8 A 6.4 A 

Bygland Rd SE & Rhinehart Dr SE (Stop Control) TWSC 88.9 F 21.8 C 
Bygland Rd SE & Rhinehart Dr SE (Roundabout) RAB 9.6 A 6.1 A 

Rhinehart Dr SE & Greenway Blvd SE TWSC 12.1 B 12.2 B 
Elks Dr Bridge & Rhinehart Dr SE TWSC 17.1 C 16.7 C 

Bygland Rd SE & Greenway Blvd SE Signal 14.1 B 6.4 A 
Bygland Rd SE & 190th St SW TWSC 10.8 B 10.9 B 

Bygland Rd SE/Harley Dr & TH 220 TWSC 11.1 B 9.8 A 
TH 220 & US 2 TWSC 15.1 C 16.2 C 

Rhinehart Dr SE & 190th St SE AWSC 7.4 A 7.7 A 
Note: Delay and LOS for TWSC intersections reflect the worst approach 

Anticipated traffic operations in the Elks Drive Bridge alternative operate similarly in the 2045 condition as they 
did  in  the  2030  condition,  though  with  increased  delay  due  to  additional  traffic  growth.  No  additional 
intersections are expected to experience unacceptable operations in 2045 beyond those that did in 2030 with 
the Elks Drive Bridge. However, where only one peak hour was expected to operate at LOS E or F in the 2030 
conditions, both peak hours would be expected to operate unacceptably on Belmont Road at the intersections 
with Elks Drive, 24th Avenue S, and 32nd Avenue S under 2045 conditions.  

The Bygland Road SE and Greenway Boulevard SE  intersection  is programmed  to be signalized by  the 2045 
forecast year, which would be expected to improve operations at the intersection from unacceptable levels (LOS 
F in the AM peak hour) with the Elks Drive Bridge in 2030 to LOS B or better in 2045.  

3.2.2.3 2030 32nd Ave Bridge Conditions 

The intersection delay and LOS for the study intersections during the AM and PM peak hours under 2030 32nd 
Avenue Bridge Conditions are provided in Table 3‐3. 



GRAND  FORKS ‐EAST  GRAND  FORKS  
FUTURE  BRIDGE  TRAFF IC   IMPACT  STUDY  

 

Alliant No. 121‐0019 

PAGE 16 

Table 3‐3 – 2030 32nd Avenue Bridge Conditions Intersection Delay and LOS 

Intersection 
Control 

Type 

AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour 

Delay 
(s/veh) 

LOS 
Delay 
(s/veh) 

LOS 

S Washington St & 32nd Ave S Signal 37.6 D 48.5 D 
Cherry St & 32nd Ave S AWSC 175.6 F 19.9 C 

Belmont Rd & 32nd Ave S AWSC 173.3 F 78.8 F 
S Washington St & 24th Ave S Signal 19.7 B 29.4 C 

Cherry St & 24th Ave S AWSC 9.3 A 9.2 A 
Belmont Rd & 24th Ave S TWSC 14.9 B 16.9 C 
Belmont Rd & Elks Drive TWSC 12.0 B 14.2 B 

S Washington St & DeMers Ave Signal 41.1 D 38.1 D 
Cherry St & 4th Ave S Signal 6.3 A 5.5 A 

Belmont Rd & 4th Ave S AWSC 38.4 E 18.1 C 
3rd Ave SE & 1st St SE Signal 7.9 A 6.4 A 

Bygland Rd SE & Rhinehart Dr SE (Stop Control) TWSC 70.6 F 20.5 C 
Bygland Rd SE & Rhinehart Dr SE (Roundabout) RAB 9.1 A 6.1 A 

Rhinehart Dr SE & Greenway Blvd SE TWSC 10.0 B 10.1 B 
32nd Ave Bridge & Rhinehart Dr SE TWSC 14.2 B 12.5 B 
Bygland Rd SE & Greenway Blvd SE TWSC 67.8 F 11.8 B 

Bygland Rd SE & 190th St SW TWSC 11.4 B 10.7 B 
Bygland Rd SE/Harley Dr & TH 220 TWSC 10.3 B 9.4 A 

TH 220 & US 2 TWSC 13.1 B 13.9 B 
Rhinehart Dr SE & 190th St SE AWSC 8.7 A 9.1 A 

Note: Delay and LOS for TWSC intersections reflect the worst approach 

Similar to the Elks Bridge Scenario, the expectation of traffic shifting from the Point Bridge to a new bridge at 
32nd Avenue S would be expected to result in improved operations at Belmont Road and 4th Avenue S compared 
to 2030 No Build Conditions. The current all‐way stop control at this intersection would be expected to operate 
at LOS E in the AM peak hour and LOS C in PM peak hour with the proposed 32nd Avenue Bridge, versus LOS F 
in both peak hours under 2030 No Build Conditions. 

Traffic at the unsignalized study intersections on 32nd Avenue S would be expected to operate unacceptably in 
this scenario. The Cherry Street and 32nd Avenue S intersection would be expected to fail (LOS F) in the AM peak 
period,  as would  the  Belmont  Road  and  32nd  Avenue  S  intersection  in  both  the  AM  and  PM  peak  hours. 
Compared to the LOS C operations at these intersections in under 2030 No Build Conditions, these intersections 
would be expected to operate worse due to the expected shift in traffic from 4th Avenue S / DeMers Avenue to 
32nd Avenue S. 

Similar to the Elks Drive Bridge scenario, the intersection at Bygland Road SE and Greenway Boulevard SE would 
be expected to operate at LOS F in the AM peak period in 2030 with the 32nd Avenue Bridge maintaining the 
current two‐way stop control condition on Greenway Boulevard SE. Similarly, the Bygland Road SE and Rhinehart 



GRAND  FORKS ‐EAST  GRAND  FORKS  
FUTURE  BRIDGE  TRAFF IC   IMPACT  STUDY  

 

Alliant No. 121‐0019 

PAGE 17 

Drive SE intersection would be expected to operate at LOS F on the stop controlled Rhinehart Drive SE approach 
under the 32nd Avenue Bridge alternative in 2030 if no improvements were made to the intersection. 

3.2.2.4 2045 32nd Ave Bridge Conditions 

The intersection delay and LOS for the study intersections during the AM and PM peak hours under 2045 32nd 
Avenue Bridge Conditions are provided in Table 3‐4. 

Table 3‐4 – 2045 32nd Avenue Bridge Conditions Intersection Delay and LOS 

Intersection 
Control 

Type 

AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour 

Delay 
(s/veh) 

LOS 
Delay 
(s/veh) 

LOS 

S Washington St & 32nd Ave S Signal 63.2 E 53.6 D 
Cherry St & 32nd Ave S AWSC 448.8 F 72.0 F 

Belmont Rd & 32nd Ave S AWSC 275.1 F 177.5 F 
S Washington St & 24th Ave S Signal 20.4 C 29.7 C 

Cherry St & 24th Ave S AWSC 9.5 A 9.4 A 
Belmont Rd & 24th Ave S TWSC 16.7 C 19.5 C 
Belmont Rd & Elks Drive TWSC 12.7 B 15.5 C 

S Washington St & DeMers Ave Signal 51.4 D 38.3 D 
Cherry St & 4th Ave S Signal 6.6 A 5.7 A 

Belmont Rd & 4th Ave S AWSC 53.4 F 21.2 C 
3rd Ave SE & 1st St SE Signal 8.0 A 6.6 A 

Bygland Rd SE & Rhinehart Dr SE (Stop Control) TWSC 118.7 F 23.7 C 
Bygland Rd SE & Rhinehart Dr SE (Roundabout) RAB 10.3 B 6.3 A 

Rhinehart Dr SE & Greenway Blvd SE TWSC 10.5 B 10.7 B 
32nd Ave Bridge & Rhinehart Dr SE TWSC 17.4 C 14.2 B 
Bygland Rd SE & Greenway Blvd SE Signal 9.0 A 6.0 A 

Bygland Rd SE & 190th St SW TWSC 12.3 B 11.3 B 
Bygland Rd SE/Harley Dr & TH 220 TWSC 11.2 B 9.8 A 

TH 220 & US 2 TWSC 14.8 B 16.0 C 
Rhinehart Dr SE & 190th St SE AWSC 9.4 A 10.0 A 

Note: Delay and LOS for TWSC intersections reflect the worst approach 

Traffic operations under the 32nd Avenue Bridge alternative in 2045 would be expected to function similarly to 
the 2030 scenario, with general increases in vehicle delays throughout the network. All intersections that were 
expected to reach or exceed capacity in 2030 with the 32nd Avenue Bridge would continue to fail. The PM peak 
hour would be expected to degrade to LOS F at the Cherry Street and 32nd Avenue S intersection by 2045, and 
the Belmont Road and 4th Avenue S intersection would be expected to degrade from LOS E to LOS F in the AM 
peak hour between 2030 and 2045. The S Washington Street and 32nd Avenue S intersection would be expected 
to approach capacity in the AM peak hour under the 2045 32nd Avenue Bridge alternative.  



GRAND  FORKS ‐EAST  GRAND  FORKS  
FUTURE  BRIDGE  TRAFF IC   IMPACT  STUDY  

 

Alliant No. 121‐0019 

PAGE 18 

The Bygland Road SE and Greenway Boulevard SE intersection was programmed to be signalized by the 2045 
forecast year, which would be expected to improve operations at the intersection from unacceptable levels (LOS 
F in the AM peak hour) with the 32nd Avenue Bridge in 2030 to LOS A during both peak hours in 2045.  

The Red River Crossing Alternatives Analysis in Appendix C of the Grand Forks‐East Grand Forks MPO 2045 Street 
Highway Plan Update completed in 2018 analyzed many of the same intersections in the PM peak hour through 
2045 Build Conditions. While the results of the studies may vary due to different data sources and data dates, 
analysis  methodologies,  and  signal  timing  optimization,  both  studies  identify  anticipated  unacceptable 
operations during the PM peak hour under 2045 Elks Drive Bridge Conditions at the intersections on Belmont 
Road at Elks Drive, 24th Avenue S, and 32nd Avenue S. The 2018 study also indicated expected LOS E operations 
at the S Washington Street and 32nd Avenue S intersection, whereas this study indicates that the intersection 
could operate at LOS D with signal timing optimization with the forecast volumes. Additionally, the 2018 study 
identified the Bygland Road SE and Greenway Boulevard SE intersection as failing in the 2045 Elks Drive Bridge 
PM peak hour scenario, which was improved in this study with the programmed signalization of the intersection 
by the forecast 2045 horizon year. 

Under  the  forecast 2045 32nd Avenue Bridge PM peak hour conditions, both  the 2018  study and  this  study 
identified expected unacceptable operations at the Belmont Road and 32nd Avenue S intersection. Cherry Street 
was not included in the prior analysis, but was also shown to have expected failing operations in this study. The 
intersections  on  S Washington  Street  at  DeMers  Avenue  and  32nd  Avenue  S  were  shown  to  operate 
unacceptably  in the 2018 study during the PM peak hour; however, the analysis for this study  indicates that 
both the intersections would be expected to operate at LOS D with signal timing optimization in the PM peak 
hour with the forecast 32nd Avenue Bridge traffic volumes. 

3.3  TRAFFIC  CONTROL  WARRANTS  ANALYSIS  

After determining expected intersection delays and level of service in the Existing, No Build, Elks Drive Bridge, 
and 32nd Avenue Bridge  scenarios, a  traffic  control warrants analysis was  conducted  to determine possible 
alternatives for traffic control at locations that exhibited intersection LOS E or F operations in either peak hour 
in each scenario. All‐way stop control warrants and traffic signal warrants were analyzed for existing conditions, 
2030 conditions, and 2045 conditions using the existing and forecast traffic volumes for the study intersections. 
The intersections on S Washington Street where operations are expected to reach LOS E or F were not evaluated 
for warrants because they are already fully signalized, high‐capacity  intersections, and would be assumed to 
remain signalized into the future.  

The FHWA Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD) outlines thresholds for traffic volumes and delay 
conditions, among other  criteria,  that must be met  for all‐way  stop  control and  traffic  signal  control  to be 
warranted at a given intersection. Additionally, if an intersection is located next to a school and has significant 
schoolchildren  crossings,  all‐way  stop  control may  be  considered.  To meet  the  warrants  for  a  signalized 
intersection, any one of the warrants must be met. The volume‐based signal warrants (1‐3) were evaluated for 
this  analysis.  If  signal warrants  are met  for  an  intersection,  all‐way  stop  control  is  also warranted  for  the 
intersection.  In  order  to  satisfy  all‐way  stop  control warrants where  signal warrants  are  not met,  both  a 
minimum volume criterion and delay criterion must be met.  



GRAND  FORKS ‐EAST  GRAND  FORKS  
FUTURE  BRIDGE  TRAFF IC   IMPACT  STUDY  

 

Alliant No. 121‐0019 

PAGE 19 

There are no definitive warrants for converting an intersection to a roundabout. Roundabouts were considered 
as  a  potential mitigation measure  at  all  intersections where  all‐way  stop  control warrant  or  traffic  signal 
warrants were  satisfied.  Additionally,  roundabouts were  considered  as  a  potential mitigation measure  at 
locations where no warrants were met where they may provide a benefit to  intersection or segment traffic 
operations or safety.  

Table 3‐5 through Table 3‐7 summarize the signal and all‐way stop control warrants for Existing, 2030, and 2045 
conditions. 

Table 3‐5 – Existing Signal and All‐Way Stop Warrant Analysis Summary 

 

Table 3‐6 – 2030 Signal and All‐Way Stop Warrant Analysis Summary 

 



GRAND  FORKS ‐EAST  GRAND  FORKS  
FUTURE  BRIDGE  TRAFF IC   IMPACT  STUDY  

 

Alliant No. 121‐0019 

PAGE 20 

Table 3‐7 – 2045 Signal and All‐Way Stop Warrant Analysis Summary 

 



GRAND  FORKS ‐EAST  GRAND  FORKS  
FUTURE  BRIDGE  TRAFF IC   IMPACT  STUDY  

 

Alliant No. 121‐0019 

PAGE 21 

3.4  INTERSECTION  MITIGATION  

After  the  intersection  traffic  operations  and  traffic  control  warrants  were  evaluated,  intersections  that 
presented insufficient traffic operations were evaluated for potential mitigation options. Possible traffic control 
alternatives were identified at each intersection based on warrants met. Any mitigation must be adequate to 
acceptably serve projected traffic volumes through the 2045 horizon year, so the intersection mitigation analysis 
was  completed using  the 2045  volume  conditions  for  the No Build and Build alternatives. The  intersection 
mitigation analysis is summarized in Table 3‐8. The summary table presents the unmitigated LOS, warrants met, 
special considerations for schools or crash history, and identifies options for mitigation that are warranted and 
would be expected to provide acceptable traffic operations.  

Table 3‐8 – Intersection Mitigation Summary 

 

For the purposes of developing a cost estimate for each bridge option, a sing le mitigation option is assumed for 
each location requiring mitigation. For the purposes of the cost estimate, the lowest‐cost option that the traffic 
modeling showed would provide acceptable traffic operations was selected. When determining the mitigated 
control option assumed for cost estimating, the following hierarchy of changes was followed: 



GRAND  FORKS ‐EAST  GRAND  FORKS  
FUTURE  BRIDGE  TRAFF IC   IMPACT  STUDY  

 

Alliant No. 121‐0019 

PAGE 22 

1. Add turn lanes without changes in traffic control 
2. Convert to all‐way stop control with minimum required turn lane additions (if existing TWSC) 
3. Convert to signalized control with minimum required turn lane additions  
4. Convert to a single‐lane roundabout 

Locations near schools with pedestrian crossings and intersections where the safety analysis identified a safety 
issue (see Technical Memorandum #3‐B) were identified and considered when evaluating mitigation options. At 
these  locations, mitigation options with additional  lanes  (which would  increase crossing distances) and stop 
controlled  operations  (as  opposed  to  higher  levels  of  traffic  control)  were  deprioritized  over  signal  or 
roundabout  options  that  would  provide  improved  pedestrian  crossing  conditions  by  providing  controlled 
crossings, shorter crossing distances, reduced vehicle speeds, and/or median pedestrian refuge areas. Crash 
issues, right‐of‐way availability, and previous study recommendations were also factored into design feasibility 
and potential effectiveness. For consistency of approach, the “assumed mitigation for cost estimate” reflects 
the lowest‐cost option that would be expected to provide acceptable operations and address pedestrian/safety 
issues where  identified. This would be the would be the first option on the established hierarchy that would 
provide acceptable intersection operations. The mitigation options assumed for cost estimating are summarized 
in Table 3‐9.



GRAND  FORKS ‐EAST  GRAND  FORKS  
FUTURE  BRIDGE  TRAFFIC   IMPACT  STUDY  

 

Alliant No. 121‐0019 

PAGE 23

Table 3‐9 – Summary of Intersection Mitigation Assumed for Cost Estimate 

 

 

   

   



GRAND  FORKS ‐EAST  GRAND  FORKS  
FUTURE  BRIDGE  TRAFF IC   IMPACT  STUDY  

 

Alliant No. 121‐0019 

PAGE 24 

The S Washington Street and DeMers Avenue intersection was not able to be feasibly mitigated in the 2045 No 
Build scenario with conventional improvements such as signal timing/phasing changes, additional through lanes, 
or additional turn  lanes. The Washington Street Reconstruction Traffic Operations Report completed  in 2020 
recommended adding one though lane in the northbound and southbound directions on S Washington Street. 
While these improvements would mitigate traffic operations at the intersection, they may not be feasible due 
to the limited available right‐of‐way and large costs and impacts associated with acquiring it to expand the road. 
The Washington Street Corridor Study completed  in 2012 showed operational benefits to reconstructing the 
intersection as a Continuous Flow  Intersection  (CFI) at  this  location. The CFI design was also  included as an 
alternative in the Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP). The North Dakota Department of Transportation, in 
conjunction with local agencies, is planning to conduct a Road Safety Review (RSR) for the S Washington Street 
and DeMers Avenue intersection that will evaluate safety conditions further and will provide recommendations 
based on its findings. 

The 4th Avenue S and Belmont Road intersection does not meet signal or all‐way stop control warrants under 
the 2045 Elks Drive Bridge or 2045 32nd Avenue Bridge options; however, removing the all‐way stop control and 
converting to a two‐way stop controlled intersection would be anticipated to operate unacceptably and would 
result  in degraded conditions  for pedestrian crossings. While a traffic signal  isn’t warranted based on traffic 
volumes, a single‐lane mini‐roundabout would be expected to mitigate the delay issues and operate at LOS A in 
both peak hours for both bridge alternatives. This option would also provide traffic calming by forcing vehicles 
to slow down to traverse the roundabout, which would be beneficial due to the proximity to Phoenix Elementary 
School. A mini‐roundabout would provide improved pedestrian crossing conditions by providing a single lane in 
each direction and providing a median refuge at the crosswalks, allowing pedestrians to cross one direction of 
traffic at a time. 

Locations with high pedestrian traffic near schools should consider additional pedestrian accommodations such 
as  curb  extensions  (to  reduce  crossing  distance),  signalized  pedestrian  crossings,  and/or  adding  median 
pedestrian refuges to improve crossing conditions. These may be considered at any location where pedestrian 
demand  substantiates  a  need  for  safer  crossing  conditions,  but  particularly  should  be  considered  at  the 
intersections adjacent to schools. This includes the intersections at 4th Avenue S and Belmont Road and at 32nd 
Avenue S and Cherry Street. This level of intersection design is not being conducted as part of this system‐level 
planning study. It is assumed that more detailed design of options would be conducted as next steps beyond 
this planning study. 



 
MPO Staff Report 

Technical Advisory Committee: 
Sept. 8, 2021 

MPO Executive Board:  
Sept. 15, 2021 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Matter of Update of the East Grand Forks Land Use Plan. 
 
Background:  
An up-to-date Land Use Plan is vital in the process to update the MPO Metropolitan 
Transportation Plan (MTP). The Land Use Plan will establish the current population and 
the percent growth per year for the future for the MTP. The Land Use Plan will also 
establish the areas of the City that will be used to accommodate the growth of the City 
whether it is residential or employment. This vision of how and where the City grows 
will establish the transportation network of the City in the future. The transportation 
network is established in the Metropolitan Transportation Plan, which will plan how 
people get to and from these new areas of growth. 
 
In July of 2020 WSB was contracted to complete the update to the East Grand Forks 
Land Use Plan. The rest of 2020 was spend gathering data for population and 
employment estimates, identifying existing conditions of the City, and putting together 
surveys to gather public input on the conditions and vision for the future.  
 
In 2021, the first public meeting was in February. Once the public input was gathered, it 
was combined with the future population and employment estimates to create a future 
land use map with growth phases. The input also influenced the priority of the goals and 
policies. In order to implement the goals and policies, the heads of East Grand forks 
Parks & Recreation, the Downtown Development Association, and the East Grand Forks 
Economic Development Authority (EDA) were asked for their input on the goals & 
policies and implementation chapters. The head of the EDA brought the future land use 
and economic development goals and policies implementation to the EDA Board for their 
input.  The Planning and Zoning Commission was briefed as wel. 
 
The input from the public, stakeholders, steering committee, department heads, and 
leaders in the City (boards, commissions, and council) informed all chapters of the 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Informational 

TAC RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
 



document. All groups were vital in telling us the current and future needs of the City and 
where the priorities should be focused. They also informed us on where growth should 
happen. Where motorized and non-motorized transportation and recreation amenities 
should be focused were feedback given. All this input and data was combined into the 
Draft 2050 East Grand Forks Land Use Plan that will go before the public. 
 
With a draft plan completed, the public will get a chance to give their input. A virtual 
open house will be held on Sept. 15th starting at 6:00 PM. The public is being asked to 
register for the meeting, the link (https://bit.ly/egfnewplan) is available on the plan 
website www.egfplan.org.  
 
Findings and Analysis 
 Information 

Support Materials: 
 Presentation 

https://bit.ly/egfnewplan
http://www.egfplan.org/


East Grand Forks Land 
Use Plan Update
TAC: SEPTEMBER 8, 2021

EXECUTIVE BOARD: SEPTEMBER 15, 2021



Schedule



Schedule
Virtual Open House: September 15th starting at 6:00 PM

Registration is needed to participate- https://bit.ly/egfnewplan

Steering Committee Meeting: September 27th at 3:30 PM
Planning Commission: Draft presented Oct.14th

City Council Work Session: Draft presented October 26th

Planning Commission: Final presented Nov. 10th

City Council: Final presented Nov. 16th

https://bit.ly/egfnewplan


Population

East Grand Forks Historic Population East Grand Forks Population Projection



Employment

Factors used in employment projections.

After calculating 
factors that 
descried the 
number of jobs 
per commercial 
and industrial 
acre and those 
that describe 
residential 
densities, the 
acreage of each 
land use demand 
created by the 
projected 
population can 
be determined. 
These demands 
for jobs are 
highlighted in 
blue.



Future Land Use- 2045 Plan



Future Land Use



Goals & Policies



Goals & Policies



Goals & Policies



Livability Principles
Goal Area Housing/ 

Residential
Urban Expansion 

Area
Parks, Recreation, 

& Open Spaces

Goal

Promote the 
development and 
expansion of 
neighborhoods with 
individual character 
and sufficient access 
to urban services.

Encourage 
investments 
that support 
economic 
development.

Encourage 
redevelopment 
and 
preservation 
within the 
longstanding 
key downtown.

Plan for a logical 
expansion of urban 
growth beyond the 
existing municiple 
service boundaries.

Create and maintain 
a park system with a 
variety of 
recreational 
opportunities 
throughout the 
community.

Provide a transportation 
system that is integrated 
with land use and 
development while 
enhancing safty for all 
users and modes of 
transportation.

Advocate 
development that 
is accompanied 
by a sufficient 
level of support 
services and 
facilities.

Plan for the current 
and future 
transportation 
needs of the 
community as it 
grows.

Provide more transportation choices.
Develop safe, reliable and economical transportation 
choices to decrease household transportation costs, 
reduce our nation's dependence on foreign oil, improve air 
quality, reduce greenhouse gas emissions and promote 
public health.
Promote equitable, affordable housing.
Expand location- and energy- efficient housing choices for 
people of all ages, incomes, races and ethnicities to 
increase mobility and lower the combined cost of housing 
snd transportation.
Enhance economic competitiveness.
Improve economic competitiveness through reliable and 
timely access to employment centers, educational 
opportunities, services and other basic needs by workers 
as well as expanded business access to markets.

Support existing communities.
Target federal funding toward existing communities- 
through such stratagies as transit-oriented, mixed-use 
development and land recycling- to increase community 
revitalization, improve the efficiencty of public works 
investments, and safeguard rural landscapes.

Coordinate policies and leverage investment.
Align federal policies and funding to remove barriers to 
collaboration, leverage funding to increase the 
accountability and effectiveness of all levels of government 
to plan future growth, including making smart energy 
choices such as locally generated renewable energy.

Value communities and neighborhoods.
Enhance the unique characteristics of all communities by 
investing in healthy, safe, and walkable neighborhoods- 
rural, urban, or suburban.

1.1, 1.3

1.5

1.3, 1.5

1.1

1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4

1.2, 1.3

1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 
1.4, 1.5

1.2, 1.3, 1.4

1.3

1.5

Economic Development

2.3

2.1

2.1, 2.2, 2.3, 2.4

2.1, 2.4

2.2, 2.3

1.2, 1.3

1.2, 1.3

1.1, 1.2

1.1

1.1, 1.3

1.2, 1.3

1.1, 1.2, 1.3

1.2, 1.3

1.1, 1.2, 1.3

1.2, 1.6

1.1, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5

1.1, 1.5, 1.7

1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.7, 1.8

1.8

1.3, 1.4, 1.5, 1.7

Transportation

Li
va

bi
lit

y P
ri

nc
ip

le
s

3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4, 3.5

3.2, 3.3, 3.4

3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4, 3.5

3.1, 3.2, 3.4, 3.5

3.2, 3.3, 3.4, 3.5

3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4, 3.5

2.1, 2.2, 2.4

2.1, 2.2

2.1, 2.2, 2.3, 2.4

2.1, 2.2, 2.4

2.4

2.1, 2.2, 2.4

1.1, 1.2, 1.3



Ladders of Opportunity
Goal Area Housing/ Residential Urban Expansion 

Area
Parks, Recreation, & 

Open Spaces

Goal

Promote the 
development and 
expansion of 
neighborhoods with 
individual character and 
sufficient access to 
urban services.

Encourage 
investments that 
support economic 
development.

Encourage 
redevelopment 
and 
preservation 
within the 
longstanding 
key downtown.

Plan for a logical 
expansion of 
urban growth 
beyond the existing 
municiple service 
boundaries.

Create and maintain a 
park system with a 
variety of recreational 
opportunities 
throughout the 
community.

Provide a transportation 
system that is integrated 
with land use and 
development while 
enhancing safty for all 
users and modes of 
transportation.

Advocate 
development that 
is accompanied by 
a sufficient level of 
support services 
and facilities.

Plan for the 
current and 
future 
transportation 
needs of the 
community as it 
grows.

Expresses the strong ties between land use 
and transportation. 1.1 1.1, 1.5 2.1, 2.3 1.2, 1.3 1.2, 1.8 1.3 2.1, 2.2, 2.4 3.4

Recognizes that for certain neighbohoods, 
socio-ecnomic cahracteristics can hinder 
"climbing up ladder".

1.1, 1.2, 1.3 1.1, 1.3 2.1, 2.3 1.2 1.2, 1.6, 1.8 1.1, 1.3 2.1, 2.2, 2.4 3.3, 3.4

Locating residents with in or in close 
proximity to employment centers, 
educational and training opportunities, and 
other basic needs.

1.1, 1.3 1.5 2.1, 2.3 1.1, 1.2, 1.3 1.2, 1.8 1.3 2.1, 2.2 3.4

Strengthening the connection between 
sustainable land development and 
sustainable transportation.

1.1, 1.3 1.5 2.1, 2.3 1.1, 1.2, 1.3 1.2, 1.3, 1.8 1.3 2.1, 2.2, 2.4 3.2, 3.3, 3.4

Economic Development Transportation

L
a

d
d

e
r

s
 o

f 
O

p
p

o
r

tu
n

it
y



Transportation Planning Factors
Goal Area Housing/ 

Residential
Urban Expansion 

Area
Parks, Recreation, 

& Open Spaces

Goal

Promote the 
development and 
expansion of 
neighborhoods with 
individual character 
and sufficient access 
to urban services.

Encourage 
investments 
that support 
economic 
development.

Encourage 
redevelopment 
and 
preservation 
within the 
longstanding 
key downtown.

Plan for a logical 
expansion of urban 
growth beyond the 
existing municiple 
service boundaries.

Create and maintain 
a park system with a 
variety of 
recreational 
opportunities 
throughout the 
community.

Provide a transportation 
system that is integrated 
with land use and 
development while 
enhancing safty for all 
users and modes of 
transportation.

Advocate 
development that 
is accompanied 
by a sufficient 
level of support 
services and 
facilities.

Plan for the current 
and future 
transportation 
needs of the 
community as it 
grows.

Support the ecconomic vitality of the metropolitan 
area, especially by enabling global competitiveness, 
productivity, and efficiency.

1.1 1.1, 1.2, 1.5 2.1, 2.4 1.1, 1.2, 1.3 1.1, 1.2, 1.8 1.3 2.1, 2.3

Increase safety of the transportation system for 
motorized and non-motorized users. 1.5 1.2, 1.3 1.2, 1.6, 1.8 1.1 2.2, 2.3 3.1, 3.3, 3.5

Increase security of the transportation system of 
motorized and non-motorized users. 1.3 1.3 2.2, 2.3, 2.4 3.2, 3.5

Increase accessibility and mobility of people and 
freight. 1.1, 1.3 1.3, 1.5 2.1, 2.3 1.2, 1.3 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.5, 1.8 1.1, 1.2, 1.3 2.2, 2.3, 2.4 3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4

Protect and enhance the environment, promote 
energy conservation, improve the quality of life, and 
promote consistancy between transportation 
improvements and State and local planned growth 
and economic development patterns.

1.2, 1.3 1.2, 1.3, 1.5 2.1, 2.2, 2.3, 2.4 1.1, 1.2, 1.3 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, 
1.6, 1.7, 1.8 1.1, 1.2, 1.3 2.4 3.2, 3.4

Enhance the integration and connectivity of the 
transportation system, across and between modes, 
for people and freight.

1.1 1.5 2.1, 2.2, 2.3 1.2 1.1, 1.2, 1.6, 1.8 1.1, 1.2, 1.3 2.1, 2.2, 2.3 3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4

Promote efficient system management and 
operation. 1.1 1.4, 1.5 2.1 1.1 1.3, 1.4, 1.8 1.1 2.4 3.3, 3.4, 3.5

Emphasize the preservation of the existing 
transportation system. 1.1, 1.2 2.1 1.4, 1.6, 1.8

Improve the resiliency and reliability of the 
transportation system and reduce or midigate 
stormwater impacts of surface transportation.

2.1 1.8 2.4 3.5

Enhance travel and tourism. 1.1 1.5 2.2, 2.3 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.5, 1.7, 
1.8 1.1, 1.2 2.1 3.2, 3.3, 3.4

Economic Development Transportation

T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 F
ac

to
rs



MPO Staff Report 
Technical Advisory Committee:  

September 8, 2021 
MPO Executive Board:  

September 15, 2021 
 

 

 

Matter of the Update on Grand Forks 2050 Land Use Plan. 
 
Background: SRF Engineering has been working with the City and MPO on updating the 2045 
City Land Use plan to be updated to become the 2050 Plan.  Each of the past monthly meetings, 
we have kept the TAC and Board informed of the activities; we did this primarily by highlighting 
the activity within the monthly work summary and stressing the website.  Enough activity has 
taken place to do a more complete update. 
 
The Land Use Subcommittee has met 3 times to help steer the work.  One community 
engagement activity took place along with online surveys.  The summary is attached. 
 
Recent 2020 Census results have provided a better basis to forecast future population.  With this 
and the feedback to date, initial growth alternatives have been created.  The alternatives can be 
described as: 

1.  Alternative #1 – focus on outward growth with infill focus on vacant/agricultural land    
     within city limits. 
2.  Alternative #2 – focus on infill with redevelopment/repurpose of existing land uses  
     along with vacant/agricultural land within City limits. 
 

These two alternatives were discussed at a September 1st Land Use Sub-committee meeting with 
input that is causing some subtle changes to the proposed land use alternatives.  It is hoped that 
by the TAC meeting, newly revised map graphics can be provided. 
 
 
 
Findings and Analysis: 
• NONE 
 
Support Materials: 
• Presentation. 
• Engagement Summary 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Update on Grand Forks 2050 Land Use Plan 
 







Estimated Growth Was Strong early in the Decade 
with All Three Sources Estimating Growth

Difference in Initial Estimate and End Estimate Where
Both Census Sources Estimated Population Loss 



GF County Census Tract 2020 Pop 2010 Pop Change % Change
101 3,388       3,178       210 6.6%
102 4,248       4,663       -415 -8.9%

103.01 1,588       2,164       -576 -26.6%
103.02 2,396       2,782       -386 -13.9%

104 5,873       6,004       -131 -2.2%
106 2,414       2,365       49 2.1%
107 1,879       1,981       -102 -5.1%

108.01 6,027       4,428       1599 36.1%
108.04 4,824       4,259       565 13.3%
108.05 2,391       2,455       -64 -2.6%
108.06 3,023       3,171       -148 -4.7%

109 2,211       2,145       66 3.1%
110 1,846       1,969       -123 -6.2%
111 6,382       4,619       1763 38.2%

112.01 2,742       2,818       -76 -2.7%
112.02 5,774       2,960       2814 95.1%

Polk County Census Tract
201 4,732       4,736       -4 -0.1%
202 1,489       1,267       222 17.5%
203 3,199       2,835       364 12.8%

GF-EGF Census Tract Population Change Between 2010 and 2020 Census

The red highlighted text indicates census tracts that had a decrease in population between the 2010 Census and the 2020 census
The table shows the numbers and percent change for each tract.  Growth in the 2 Census Tracts that have downtown as part of
The tract reflect the increased housing that has been built particularly in the downtown of Grand Forks.  
Unfortunately, Census Tract 117.02 includes all of the rest of SE Grand Forks County, including Thompson, so difficult to distinguish
Growth just from City of Grand Forks.
East Grand Forks’ north end is a bit of a surprise yet the lost is at 4 people.





•

•

•





•

•

•

•

•



•
•

•

•

•



•
•

•

•

•



•

•
•

•

•



•

•
•
•

•
•



•

•

•

•

•



•

•





Not trying to achieve 
BRT; rather showing 
that this concept 
suggested the 
redevelopment 
potential along the 
UND to Downtown 
Corridor





  

81 Chapter 3:  Growth Tiers and Future Land Use | City of Grand Forks 

 

FIGURE 3.12: 2045 FUTURE LAND USE MAP



17TH AVE S

32ND AVE S

DEMERS AVE

47TH AVE S

B
EL

M
O

N
T 

R
D

N
 4

2N
D

 S
T

S 
42

N
D

 S
T

S 
48

TH
 S

T

N 3RD ST

N 5TH ST

N 4TH ST

UNIVERSITY AVE

N
 5

5T
H

 S
T

S 
C

O
LU

M
B

IA
 R

D

62ND AVE S

12TH AVE NE

GATEWAY DR

N
 C

O
LU

M
B

IA
 R

D

N
 W

A
SH

IN
G

TO
N

 ST

27TH AVE N

S 
W

A
SH

IN
G

TO
N

 S
T

East
Grand
Forks

Agricultural
Commercial
Industrial
Mixed Use
Public/Semi-Public

Recreation/Open Space
Rural Residential
Urban Residential
City Boundary

Future Land Use Alternative 1
Figure X

F
0 0.5 10.25

Miles

Future Land Use Category



RAM
P

17TH AVE S

32ND AVE S

DEMERS AVE

47TH AVE S

B
EL

M
O

N
T 

R
D

N
 4

2N
D

 S
T

M
IN

NESOTA
 A

VE

S 
42

N
D

 S
T

S 
48

TH
 S

T

4TH AVE S

N 3RD STN 5TH ST

N 4TH ST

N
 C

O
LU

M
B

IA
 R

D

UNIVERSITY AVE

N
 5

5T
H

 S
T

S 
C

O
LU

M
B

IA
 R

D

62ND AVE S

12TH AVE NE

GATEWAY DR

S 38TH
 ST

N
 W

A
SH

IN
G

TO
N

 ST

27TH AVE N

S 
W

A
SH

IN
G

TO
N

 S
T

East
Grand
Forks

Agricultural
Commercial
Industrial
Mixed Use
Public/Semi-Public

Recreation/Open Space
Urban Residential
Rural Residential
City Boundary
Activation Corridor

Activation Site

Potential Future
Elementary School

Future Land Use Alternative 2
Figure X

F

Future Land Use Category

0 0.5 10.25
Miles



•

•
September 16th at University Park 4-7 PM

























 

 

 

 

 

 
 

• 

• 
• 



• 

• 

• 

• 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 



• 

• 
• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 



 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 



MPO Staff Report 
Technical Advisory Committee:  

September 8, 2021 
MPO Executive Board:  

September 15, 2021 
 

 

 

Matter of the Proposed Amendments to 2045 MTP. 
 
Background: The 2045 Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP) was adopted in January 2019.  
From time to time, amendments are needed to reflect changes that are necessary for a variety of 
factors.  The Transit Element, for example, has been amended a couple of times since its original 
adoption.  The amendments proposed affect primarily the Street/Highway Element with a minor 
amendment to the Bike/Ped Element.   
 
There are proposed amendments that are located wholly on one side of the Red River.  As such, 
there are being identified by which side of the River the proposed amendment is located. 
Assuming the MPO grants preliminary approval, that allows the Public Participation Process for 
possible amendments to the TMP to be engaged. Just as the original 2045 MTP adoption process 
engaged both communities as a whole, these proposed amendments are being presented for 
consideration to each side of the River whether it has a direct affect or not.  Essentially, this is an 
up to 60 days review process in which each City is requested to consider these changes to their 
individual City Plans.  At these City consideration, additional formal public hearings are held.   
 
UPDATE:  The MPO Board preliminarily approved all but one of the proposed 
amendment.  The one not moving forward is the East Grand Forks’ request to switch the 
2022 project.  The remaining amendments to presented to each respective City for 
consideration.  Each City had options of at least processing the amendment as an 
amendment to their respective city Plan or make a assessment that the proposed 
amendments did not significantly change their respective City Plan enough to warrant an 
amendment. 
 
Both Cities determine the proposed amendments were not significant enough.  Therefore, 
the MPO can process the amendments during the month of October.  The TAC will hold 
the required public hearing on the proposed amendment during its October 13th meeting.  
The MPO Board can then possibly consider final action at its October 20th meeting.  As a 
reminded, these are the amendments 
MINNESOTA SIDE 
 
The proposed amendment to the Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP) is needed.  In the 
Metropolitan Transportation Plan, MN 220 pavement preservation was overlooked. The 
Minnesota Department of Transportation is requesting to add a pavement preservation project, 
with approximately 2 miles of it within the MPO, to the MTP that was not previously identified. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Update on Proposed Amendments to 2045 MTP 



Therefore, the following amendment is necessary: 
Add Project Short-term, MN 220 from Polk CSAH 19 (23rd Street NW) to 0.3 miles 
south of Polk CSAH 22, crack/seat with overlay to the MTP’s MnDOT Financially 
Constrained State of Good Repair Projects (2023-2045) list. Estimated project cost: 
$6,400,000 of which an estimated $1.5M is within the MPA. 
 

The MN 220 North Corridor Study identified MN 220 from 23rd Street NW to 140th Street SW 
for Mid Term Improvements (2025-2034) to “construct left and right turn lanes as applicable at 
public street access as land develops”.  The extent of improvements being included with this 
project is yet to be determine as most are dependent upon adjacent land development. The study 
also identified the MN 220 intersection at 23rd Street NW for Long Term Improvements (2035-
2045+) for “intersection control improvements”. 
 
The additional information provided on the Proposed Amendment document provides additional 
information about the affect this switch could have on the 2045 MTP.  Please carefully consider 
that information 
 
NORTH DAKOTA SIDE 
The proposed amendments on the North Dakota side are less substantial in potential impact to 
the 2045 MTP due to mainly affecting already vetted candidate projects.  The first proposed 
amendment simply switches the timeband between two similar projects.  As such, the 
amendment has very little impact.  The reconstruction projects on N. Columbia Rd were initially 
time with the northern segment first and then the southern segment.  The amendment merely 
switches the timing of these projects. 
 

 
 
The second proposed amendment has more potential impact on the 2045 MTP.  The addition of 
the pavement rehabilitation project on 32nd Ave S. does involve the delaying of a reconstruction 
project of S. Washington St.  A recent project was done on S. Washington St that is allowing this 
change to have little impact.  The reconstruction is still being planned for as a funded project; 
just being delayed until the next timeband.  This project is already proposed for programming in 
the next TIP. 
 
The third proposed amendment takes a vetted candidate project from the 2045 MTP process that 
wasn’t prioritized for funding to now be identified as being funded when a new revenue source 
was identified to fund it.  With COVID-19 funds, the Mill Road mill and overlay project can be 
moved form the “illustrative” list into the list of fiscally constrained projects. 
 
The last amendment affects the Bike/Ped by identifying certain existing gravel surfaced multi-
use paths as being considered for conversion to paved segments. 
 
 
Findings and Analysis: 
• The 2045 MTP list of projects with the fiscally constrained Plan needs some amendments. 
• Proposed amendments have been submitted from both sides of the Red River. 



• As part of the MPO MTP Amendment Policy, if given preliminary approval, the proposed 
amendments will be processed under a 60 day public participation process. 

• Each City has been presented with the proposed amendments; each has determined that they 
are not significant enough to warrant amending their respective plans.  Therefore, the MPO 
can move forward prior to the end of 60 days. 

 
Support Materials: 
• NONE 

 
 



MPO Staff Report 
Technical Advisory Committee:  

September 8, 2021 
MPO Executive Board:  

September 15, 2021 
 

 

 
 
Matter of Solicitation of FY2023-2026 TIP. 
 
Background:  Annually, the MPO, working in cooperation with the state dots and transit 
operators, develop a Transportation Improvement Program (TIP), which also serves as the transit 
operators’ Program of Projects (POP).  The TIP covers a four period and identifies all 
transportation projects scheduled to have federal transportation funding during the four year 
period. The process runs over an eleven month period with several public meetings ranging from 
solicitation of projects for specific programs and comments on listed projects.  This point in the 
process is the soliciting for candidate projects. 
 
We are all familiar that this is the best opportunity to add projects to the TIP.  We do this TIP 
annually so that we can make adjustments on a regular set schedule.  We have the authority to 
wait to solicit for a new TIP document every fourth year instead of annually.  We continue to 
believe an annual solicitation and adoption of a new TIP best serves our purposes.  With the 
excitement of opening the TIP up for new projects, we cannot lose sight that we are still required 
to be consistent with our MTP that contains a financial plan that is fiscally constrained.  This 
financial plan also serves as the financial plan for our TIP programming responsibilities.  New 
projects should focus on being submitted for the last year, or fourth year, of the TIP since no 
projects have been formally programmed for that year.  For this solicitation, that for most 
programs is 2026. 
 
The recently adopted TIP Procedural Manual identifies the general process for projects for the 
TIP.  TIP Procedural Manual 
 
Prior years (the first three of the four year TIP) projects have been prioritized and selected to be 
done the year the construction is identified in the TIP.  Each of these years are fiscally constraint; 
basically meaning for every dollar coming in, a project was funded until no dollars are left.  
Despite that, a careful review of each prior year is needed.  The federal amount is the most 
constrained revenue source since these prior years have been programmed to fiscal constraint 
since FY2018, see diagram below. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Start Solicitation of 2023-2026 TIP 

https://www.theforksmpo.org/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=16985775


 
 
The solicitation of many federal funding programs will soon be opened.  FAST has expired with 
a one year extension ending at the end of September; so there are many unknowns. Congress 
must take some action by the end of September to continue to both authorize and appropriate 
funds for surface transportation.  Congress has recently debated and is processing re-
authorization and economic stimulus bills.  The basic commonality among the various versions 
of these effort is significant increase in funds available.  The proverbial “devil in the details” will 
create an unusual process for this TIP solicitation.  Therefore, the process may have changes are 
we proceed. 
 
 
Findings and Analysis: 
• The 2045 MTP list of projects with the fiscally constrained Plan. 
• Programmed projects for 2023, 2024, 2025 already create fiscally constrained funds. 
• 2026 is the first year that funds have not been programmed specifically towards projects yet 

the MTP has identified the priority projects for consideration. 
• Each State has a slightly different timeline for consideration of candidate projects from 

various programs. 
 
Support Materials: 
• NONE 

 
 



AREA TASK %

O
R

IG
IN

A
L

 
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

IO
N

 
D

A
T

E

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
E

D
 

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
IO

N
 

D
A

T
E

Grand Forks Land Use Plan 
Update

Website is:  www.gf2050plan.com  See agenda item 65% 31-Dec-21 30-Mar-22

East Grand Forks Land Use 
Plan Update

website is: www.egfplan.org  See agenda item 85% 30-Jun-21 31-Dec-21

Future Bridge Traffic Impact 
Study

Ad Hoc Group will meet Setp 17th.  Website established:  
www.forks2forksbridge.com/info  Online public event with results being 

presented during September meetings.  See agenda item.
61% 31-Dec-20 30-Dec-21

Pavement Management 
System Update

Roads photos have been cpatured 44% 31-Dec-21 30-Dec-21

Transit Development Program 
TDP

Initial Project Team kick-off was held.  Data gathering and exchange is taking 
place.

25% 31-Mar-22 31-Dec-22

Aerial Photo
LiDAR has been captured and distributed to each City; the aerial photo has 

been captured; processing is now taking place
70% 30-Nov-21 30-Nov-21

Traffic Count Program On-going 90% On-going

TABLE OF CONTENTS- UPDATE  SEPTEMBER,  2021

TRANSPORTATION PLAN UPDATE AND IMPLEMENTATION                                                                                      
ACTIVITIES

M
P

O
 U

N
IF

IE
D

  
P

L
A

N
N

IN
G

 W
O

R
K

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
 -

U
P

D
A

T
E

 ,
 2

02
1


	8sept21tac
	MEMBERS
	INDIVIDUALS REQUIRING A SPECIAL ACCOMMODATION TO ALLOW ACCESS OR PARTICIPATION AT THIS MEETING ARE ASKED TO NOTIFY EARL HAUGEN, TITLE VI COORDINATOR, AT (701) 746-2660 OF HIS/HER NEEDS FIVE (5) DAYS PRIOR TO THE MEETING.
	IN ADDITION,  MATERIALS FOR THIS MEETING CAN BE PROVIDED IN ALTERNATIVE FORMATS:  LARGE PRINT, BRAILLE, CASSETTE TAPE, OR ON COMPUTER DISK FOR PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES OR WITH LIMITED ENGLISH PROFICIENCY (LEP) BY CONTACTING THE TITLE VI COORDINATOR AT...

	11aug21tacminutes
	CALL TO ORDER
	CALL OF ROLL

	FutureBridgeUpdateSeptTAC
	EGFLandUsePlanUpdateSepTAC
	East Grand Forks Land Use PlanUpdate.pdf
	East Grand Forks Land Use Plan Update
	Schedule
	Schedule
	Population
	Employment
	Future Land Use- 2045 Plan
	Future Land Use
	Goals & Policies
	Goals & Policies
	Goals & Policies
	Livability Principles
	Ladders of Opportunity
	Transportation Planning Factors


	GFLandUseUpdateSeptTAC
	GF Land Use Sept mtg.pdf
	GF Land Use update Sept.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12



	ProposedMTPamendSeptTAC
	TIPsolicitSeptemberTAC
	Sept21WorkProgramUpdate



